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Cautionary Statement

Except for the historical financial information damed herein, the matters discussed in this reparForm 10-K (as well as documents
incorporated herein by reference) may be considéf@dvard-looking" statements within the meaningsefction 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the SecufiXielsange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forwarkidgstatements include declarations
regarding the intent, belief or current expectasaf Silicon Laboratories Inc. and its managemert may be signified by the words "expet
"anticipates," "intends," "believes" or similar lgnage. You are cautioned that any such forwardilgpktatements are not guarantees of
future performance and involve a number of riskd ancertainties. Actual results could differ maadlsi from those indicated by such forw-
looking statements. Factors that could cause otrimute to such differences include those discussetér "Risk Factors” and elsewhere in
this report. Silicon Laboratories disclaims anyention or obligation to update or revise any forddooking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise.




Part |
ltem 1. Business
General

Silicon Laboratories Inc. designs and depslproprietary, analog-intensive, mixed-signag¢gnated circuits (ICs) for a broad range of
applications. Mixed-signal ICs are electronic comgrats that convert real-world analog signals, sagchound and radio waves, into digital
signals that electronic products can process. Ttweremixed-signal ICs are critical components ioread range of applications in a variety of
markets, including communications, consumer, iniistutomotive, medical and power management.

Our world-class, mixed-signal design ICs standard complementary metal oxide semicond{¢&idiOS) technology to dramatically
reduce the cost, size and system power requireroédsvices that our customers sell to their ene-gastomers. Our expertise in analog-
intensive, mixed-signal IC design in CMOS allowgaisievelop new and innovative products that agéliiiintegrated, which simplifies our
customers' designs and improves their time-to-ntarke

Industry Background

Communications, computing and consumertglaics continue to drive semiconductor consumpt®rowth in these markets has been
driven primarily by the increasing pervasivenesitdrnet usage, development of new communicatiecisnologies and the availability of
improved communication services at lower costs tngi-speed, highly reliable networks. This demhasd fueled tremendous growth in the
number of electronic devices. Demand for functigpéh mobile, handheld devices such as mobile gispportable media players and personal
navigation devices, has increased as manufactatterspt to further differentiate their productsn€emer and enterprise demand for Internet
connectivity, the availability of alternative telegny services and the transition to digital vide® @so key trends driving demand for
innovative, mixed-signal ICs.

All of these applications are characteribgdin intersection between the analog world we ilivand the digital world of computing, and
therefore require analog-intensive, mixed-signalwts. Traditional mixed-signal designs relied nolutions built with numerous, complex
discrete analog and digital components. While thesditional designs provide the required functidgpathey are often inefficient and
inadequate for use in markets where size, costepoansumption and performance are increasinglpitapt product differentiators. In order
to improve their competitive position, electroninanufacturers need to reduce the cost of theiesystreduce the complexity of their systems
and enable new features or functionality to diff¢iste themselves from their competitors.

Simultaneously, these manufacturers facelating time-to-market demands and must betabigpidly adapt to evolving industry
standards and new technologies. Because analagsinge mixedsignal IC design expertise is difficult to findege manufacturers increasin
are turning to third parties, like us, to providkvanced mixed-signal solutions. Mixed-signal desigguires specific expertise and relies on
creative, experienced engineers to deliver solattbat optimize speed, power, amplitude and reisolatespite the noisy digital environment
and within the constraints of standard manufactuprocesses. The development of this design egpdstpically requires years of practical
analog design experience under the guidance afiarsengineer, and engineers with the requiredllef/skill and expertise are in short supg

Many third-party IC providers lack suffioieanalog expertise to develop compelling mixediaidCs. As a result, manufacturers of
electronic devices value third-party providers thet supply them with mixed-signal ICs with gredtarctionality, smaller size and lower
power requirements at a reduced cost and shamertt-market.




Products

We provide analog-intensive, mixgignal ICs for use in a variety of electronic protun a broad range of applications including alole
devices, satellite set top boxes, motor control sarsors, FM/AM radios, test and measurement edriprpersonal video recorders, industrial
monitoring and control, central office telephonaipgqent, customer premises equipment and networdgugpoment. Our products integrate
complex mixed-signal functions that are frequeptlyformed by numerous discrete components in catiygeproducts into single chips or
chipsets. By doing so, we are able to create ptsdhat when compared to many competitive products:

. Require less board spar

. Reduce the use of external components loweringyhem cost and simplifying design;
. Can offer superior performance improving our custshend products;

. Provide increased reliability and manufacturabilitgproving customer yields; and/

. Reduce system power requirements enabling smaller factors and/or longer battery i

We group our products into the followindezgories:

. Broadcast products, which include our broadcasborateivers and transmitters, satellite set-topreaeivers and satellite radio
tuner;

. ISOmodem® embedded modems;

. Voice over IP (VolP) products, which include ounBLIC® subscriber line interface circuits and voiliect access

arrangement (DAA);

. Microcontrollers;

. Timing products, which include our clocks, precismock & data recovery ICs and oscillators;

. Power products, which include our isolators, curssmsors and Power over Ethernet devices; and

. Mature products, which include our silicon DAA € modems, DSL analog front end ICs, optical platsayer transceiver

and RF Synthesizers.




The following table summarizes the divgreaduct areas and applications for the varioustih@swe have introduced to customers:

Product Areas and Description

Applications

Broadcast Product

Broadcast Radio Receivers and Transmil

Our FM and AM receivers deliver the entire tunenfrantenna input to audio output in a

single chip. Ideal for portable audio applicatiothe broadcast audio products are based on ane
innovative digital architecture that enables siigaifit improvements in performance, which .
translates to a better consumer experience, wéileaing system cost and board space for our ¢
customers. The AM/FM receivers enable AM and/or 8o in virtually any device and the
transmitters allow customers to cost effectively adreless AM/FM audio playback capabil

to any portable media devic

ISOmodem Embedded Mode

The ISOmodem embedded modems leverage innovali#@sDAA technology and a digital

signal processor to deliver a globally compliartyvsmall analog modem for embedded
applications like set-top boxes, Personal VideodrRiers (PVRs) and fax capability in multi-

function printers.

Voice over IP Product

Mobile phones
Stand-alone AM/FM radios
Personal computers
Portable audio devices
MP3/digital media players
Navigation/GPS devices
Satellite radio:

Set-top and digital cable boxes
Industrial monitoring

Postage meters

Security systems

Remote medical monitoring
Gaming consoles

PVRs

Point of sale (POS) terminals
Fax machines and multi-function

printers

ProSLIC Subscriber Line Interface Circu

The ProSLIC provides the analog subscriber linerfate on the source end of the telephone
which generates dial tone, busy tone, caller 1D amgl signal. Our ProSLIC product family t

offerings for short-haul applications suitable floe customer premises as well as long-haul

applications suitable for the traditional telephaoenpany central office.

Voice Direct Access Arrangeme

« Wireless local loop providing remote
access for a wireline system
Voice over broadband modems and
terminal adapters

VoIP residential gateways
PBXs
Wired long loop and central office

systems

Our DAA provides electrical isolation to guard agdipower surges in the telephone |i .
while the codec provides analog-to-digital and tdigio-analog conversion. In a voice over
DSL application, our voice DAA also enables emenydmackup telephone service in the e\

the data network goes dow

PBXs and IP telephony produc

Microcontrollers

Our C8051F family of 8-bit mixed-signal microcoritess integrates intelligent data capture in
the form of high-resolution data converters, aitradal MCU computing function, Flash .
memory and a highly programmable set of commurdaatiterfaces in a single systemona ¢
chip. The combination of configurable higlerformance analog, up to 100 Million Instructic

Per Second (MIPS), 8051 core and in-system fieddjiammability provides the user with

design flexibility, improved time-to-market, supmrsystem performance and greater end .
product differentiation. These products are desigioe use in a large variety of end-markets,
including the automotive, communications, consunmghystrial, medical and power .

management markel

Timing Products

Precision Clock Integrated Circu

Our precision clock product family includes variqureducts ranging from general purpt .

Industrial automation and control
Automotive sensors and controls
Medical instrumentation

Electronic test and measurement

equipment

Consumer electronics
Computer peripherals
White goods

Nexi-generation networking equipme



clock multiplier products up to high performanceltiaport, redundant, multiple frequency
range clock multipliers and regenerators. Our AgeRPrecision Clock product family offers
the additional flexibility of generating any outdatquency from any input frequency with 0.3
picosecond jitter performance. Leveraging our DSRltechnology to offer frequency agile,
extremely low jitter clock products, these deviogglace traditional solutions implemented
using expensive, bulky modules, numerous crystaicss, complicated discrete circuitry
requiring numerous components, or hybrid IC/disesstlutions that offer limited functionalit

Oscillators
Our families of oscillators (XOs) and voltage-catizd oscillators (VCXOs) for applications
up to 1.4 GHz include the industry's first quadjfrency XO and VCXO devices. Leveraging
our patented DSPLL technology, both families argyda design in and provide superior
reliability, manufacturability and performance.

Power Products

Isolators
Our digital isolator product family leverages andmative technology to enable up to fc
channels of isolation in a single device, simplifyidesign and reducing system cost. These
products are still in the early stages of custoadsaption.

Telecommunications

Wireless base stations

Test and measurement equipment
HDTV video

High-speed data acquisition
SONET/SDH line cards

Networking equipment

Base stations

Test and measurement equipment
Storage area networks

Video system:

Switch mode power supplit
Ethernet/CAN networks
Isolated analog data acquisiti




Current Sensor
Our low-loss, higl-accuracy alternating current sensor family measupe® 20 amps ¢
current for control and protection in power syste@sr current sensors integrate the functi
equivalent of a current transformer circuit intbrey package, including the current
transformer, blocking diode, burden resistor anghoRC filter, thereby decreasing board
space and reducing enclosure volume requiremeheselproducts are still in the early stages
of customer adoptior

AC-DC switching power supplie
Isolated dc-dc supplies

Motor control

Electronic ballasts for lighting

Power over Etherne
Our Power over Ethernet (PoE) Power Source Equipanath Powered Device ICs offer higl < Wireless access points (WA

differentiated solutions with a reduced total biilmaterials (BOM) cost and improved * VoIP phones
performance and reliability. Our solutions alsceoféin integration level that enables » Radio frequency identification (RFID)
functionality not available with competing solutgrThese devices are still in the early stages tag readers
of customer adoption. * POS terminals
» Security systems
e Cameras

Mature Products

Silicon DAA for PC Modem:
Our DAA provides the functionality of both a diremtcess arrangement and a codec in a €
chipset. A direct access arrangement providesrelatisolation between a wireline device,
such as a modem, and the telephone line to guaidsigpower surges in the telephone line,
while the codec provides analog-to-digital and tdigio-analog conversion.

Desktop and notebook model
Modem Riser Cards

Mobile Daughter Cards
Modem on motherboard

Mini PCI cards

Handheld organizers

Set-top boxes

Video conferencing systen

DSL Analog Front Ent
The DSL AFE is designed to provide the connectifiityctions for business or residen:
asymmetric digital subscriber line (ADSL) connentit the user end in customer premises
equipment. Such a connection addresses the busindsesidential demand for high-speed
connectivity. The DSL AFE supports several ADSL coamication standards enabling varis
upload and download data rat

Personal computer modet
External modems
Residential gateways
Network interface devices

During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, saleswfmixed-signal products accounted for substiytdi of our revenue from continuing
operations.




Divestiture

On March 23, 2007, we sold our Aero® traiser, AeroFONE™ single-chip phone and power arigslifroduct lines (the "Aero product
lines") to NXP B.V. and NXP Semiconductors FranéesScollectively "NXP") for $285 million in cashncluding $14.3 million held in
escrow, plus additional earn-out potential of upnoaggregate of $65 million over the followingeiyears. These products represented about
one third of our quarterly revenue at the timehef divestiture. We view the divestiture as a styiatenflection point for us, enabling a sharper
focus on our high-margin, mixed-signal businessiemgtoving our profitability and revenue growth potial. The research and development
investments made during the past two years haverthe expansion of several key product linegbdishing the growth potential for this
remaining mixed-signal business.

We intend to selectively compete in wirslapplications and have retained a substantiaiopoof our core RF intellectual property.
However, our focus has moved to areas where thenrenh investment is commensurate with our businesdel targets. We believe this
divestiture improved our ability to achieve our filability targets.

Customers, Sales and Marketing

We market our products in various markieteugh our direct sales force, a network of indeleen sales representatives and distributors.
Direct and distributor customers buy on an indigldourchase order basis, rather than pursuanttpterm agreements.

We consider our customer to be the encboust purchasing either directly from a distributcontract manufacturer or us. An end
customer purchasing through a contract manufactypéeally instructs such contract manufactureoldain our products and incorporate such
products with other components for sale by suchrachmanufacturer to the end customer. Althougtaeteally sell the products to, and are
paid by, the distributors and contract manufactnee refer to such end customer as our customer.

Two of our distributors, Edom Technologylakvnet, represented 36% and 10% of our fiscal 280@nues, respectively. Distributors are
not considered end customers, but rather servesales channel to our end customers. No otheilulistr accounted for 10% or more of
revenues for fiscal 2007.

During fiscal 2007, our ten largest endteosers accounted for 37% of our revenues. No siegtecustomer accounted for more than |
of our revenues during this period. Our major comtes include 2Wire, Garmin, Global Navigation Syste LG Electronics, Motorola,
Panasonic, Philips, Sagem, Samsung, and Thomson.

We maintain numerous sales offices in Néutherica, Europe and Asia. Revenue is attributea geographic area based on the end
customer's shipped-to location. The percentageiofevenues to customers located outside of theedi8tates was 87% in fiscal 2007. For
further information regarding our revenues and lowed assets by geographic area, see Note 14ni8eginformation,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our direct sales force includes regionlsaanagers in the field and area business maagérrther support customer communicati
We also utilize independent sales representatindgiestributors to generate sales of our prodWfs have relationships with many
independent sales representatives and distributorsiwide whom we have selected based on their nstateding of the mixed-signal IC
marketplace and their ability to provide effectfiedd sales applications support for our products.

8




Our marketing efforts are targeted at hdémtified industry leaders and emerging marketigipants. Direct marketing activities are
supplemented by a focused marketing communicagéfost that seeks to raise awareness of our compadyproducts. Our public relations
efforts are focused on leading trade and busineskcations. Our external website is used to delogrporate information and product
information. We also pursue targeted advertisinkeiy trade publications and we have a cooperatiagketing program that allows our
distributors and representatives to promote oudyets to their local markets in conjunction witeithown advertising activities. Finally we
maintain a presence at strategic trade shows alugtiry events. These activities, in combinatiorhwiirect sales activities, help drive demand
for our products.

Due to the complex and innovative naturewflCs, we employ experienced applications erggmerho work closely with customers to
support the design-win process, and can signifigaaicelerate the customer's time required to baipgoduct to market. A design-win occurs
when a customer has designed our ICs into its mtoghehitecture. A considerable amount of efforagsist the customer in incorporating our
ICs into its products is typically required priordny sale. In many cases, our innovative ICs recgignificantly different implementations tr
existing approaches and, therefore, successfubim@htations may require extensive communicatioh pdtential customers. The amount of
time required to achieve a design-win can vary sutiglly depending on a customer's developmenegyehich can be relatively short (such
as three months) or very long (such as two yeasgd on a wide variety of customer factors. Notledign wins ultimately result in revenue.
However, once a completed design architecture das bnmplemented and produced in high volumes, astoeners are reluctant to significal
alter their designs due to this extensive desigmwbcess. We believe this process, coupled withirtellectual property protection, promotes
relatively longer product life cycles for our ICschhigh barriers to entry for competitive produegen if such competing products are offered
at lower prices. Finally, our close collaboratioithaour customers provides us with knowledge ofv@give product ideas or completely new
product line offerings that may not otherwise aisether new product discussions.

Research and Development

Through our research and development sffaré apply our experienced analog and migiggial engineering talent and expertise to ci
new ICs that integrate functions typically perfodieefficiently by multiple discrete components.ig mtegration generally results in lower
costs, smaller die sizes, lower power demands ahdreed price/performance characteristics. We attémreuse successful techniques for
integration in new applications where similar béisefan be realized. We believe that reliable amtipe analog and mixed-signal ICs can only
be developed by teams of engineers that coordihateefforts under the direction of senior engiisegho have significant analog experience
and are familiar with the intricacies of designthgse ICs for commercial volume production. Thealilgwment of test methodologies is a
critical activity in releasing a new product fomemercial success. We believe that we have attractett of the best engineers in our industry.

Research and development expenses, exgldiinontinued operations, were $89.3 million, 88%illion and $76.4 million in fiscal 200
2006 and 2005, respectively.




Technology

Our product development process facilitétesdesign of highly-innovative, analog-intensimgxed-signal ICs. Our senior engineers start
the product development process by forming an wtdeding of our customers' products and needstamddesign alternatives with increased
functionality and with decreasing power, size aostcequirements. Our engineers' deep knowledgeisfing and emerging standards and
performance requirements help us to assess theitatfeasibility of a particular IC. We target asewhere we can provide compelling product
improvements. Once we have solved the primary ehgéls, our field application engineers continueddk closely with our customers' design
teams to maintain and develop an understandingiowstomers' needs, allowing us to formulate @éinre products and refined features.

In providing mixed-signal ICs for our custers, we believe our key competitive advantages are

. Analog design expertise in CMOS;

. Digital signal processing design expertise;
. Microcontroller and system on a chip design expertanc
. Our broad understanding of systems technology remdis.

To fully capitalize on these advantageshaee assembled a world-class development teamexibptional analog and mixed-signal
design expertise led by accomplished senior enginee

Analog Design Expertise in CMOS

We believe that our most significant cooenpetency is our world-class analog design capgbfidditionally, we strive to design
substantially all of our ICs in CMOS processes.rélae several modern process technologies for faetowing semiconductors including
CMQOS, Bipolar, BICMOS, silicon germanium and gattiarsenide. While it is significantly more diffitdb design analog ICs in CMOS,
CMOS provides multiple benefits versus existingrilatives, including significantly reduced costiueed technology risk and greater
worldwide foundry capacity. CMOS is the most comigarsed process technology for manufacturing dig@fa and as a result is most likely
to be used for the manufacturing of ICs with fitiee geometries. These finer line geometries cablensmaller and faster ICs. By designing
our ICs in CMOS, we enable our products to berfiedih this trend towards finer line geometries, whadlows us to integrate more digital
functionality into our mixed-signal ICs.

Designing analog and mixed-signal ICs gm#icantly more complicated than designing stalwha digital ICs. While advanced software
tools exist to help automate digital IC designyé¢hare far fewer tools for advanced analog and dasignal IC design. In many cases, our
analog circuit design efforts begin at the fundatalenansistor level. We believe that we have aaestrated ability to design the most diffic
analog and RF circuits using standard CMOS teclyieto For example, our ProSLIC product family imgggs subscriber line interface circuit
(SLIC), codec and battery generation functionalitp a single low-voltage CMOS IC.
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Digital Signal Processing Design Expertis

We consider the partitioning of a circuitiactionality to be a proprietary and creativeigegechnique. Our digital signal processing
design expertise maximizes the price/performaneeatteristics of both the analog and digital fumesi and allows our ICs to work in an
optimized manner to accomplish particular task1égally, we surround core analog circuitry withithfCMOS transistors, which allows our
ICs to perform the required analog functions witbreased digital capabilities. For example, ouatoast audio products use a proven digital
low-IF receiver and transmitter architecture towdsl superior RF performance and interference tiglpcompared to traditional, analog-only
approaches. Digital signal processing is utilizedptimize sound quality under varying signal ctindis, enabling a better consumer
experience.

Microcontroller and System on a Chip Design Experse

We have expanded our system on a chip ggpeo include the talent and circuit integratinathodologies required to combine precision
analog, high-speed digital, Flash memory andyistem programmability into a single, monolithic OB integrated circuit. Our microcontrol
products are designed to capture an external as@ogl, convert it to a digital signal, computgithil functions on the stream of data and then
communicate the results through a standard digitaiface. The ability to develop standard prodwdgth the broadest possible customer
application base while being cost efficient witle #ilicon area of the monolithic CMOS integratedtwit requires a keen sense of customer
value and engineering capabilities. Additionallymanage the wide variety of signals on a monalighéce of silicon including electrical noi:
harmonics and other electronic distortions requirisndamental knowledge of device physics andractated design expertise.

Understanding of Systems Technology and Trends

Our focused expertise in mixed-signal I€the result of the breadth of engineering talemtave assembled with experience working in
analog-intensive CMOS design for a wide varietgpplications. This expertise, which we consideomgetitive advantage, is the foundation
of our in-depth understanding of the technology tredds that impact electronic systems and markis expertise includes:

. Isolation, which is critical for existing and emarg telecom networks;

. Frequency synthesis, which is core technology fioeless and clocking applicatior

. Enabling integration of thil-party software with our ICs to create combined oihs; anc

. Sigr|1_al p_rocessing and precision analog, which fahmesheart of consumer, industrial, medical andmotive electronics
applications.

Our understanding of the role of analogtdignterfaces within electronic systems, standardolution, and end market drivers enables us
to identify product development opportunities aagitalize on market trends.
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Manufacturing

As a fabless IC manufacturer, we conduatéSign and development in our facilities and etegtally transfer our proprietary IC designs
to third-party semiconductor fabricators who pracgiticon wafers to produce the ICs that we dediym. IC designs typically use industry-
standard CMOS manufacturing process technologghasge a level of performance normally associatéd more expensive special-purpose
IC fabrication technology. We believe the use of @Mtechnology facilitates the rapid production of BCs within a lower cost framework.
Our IC production employs submicron process gedagetrhich are readily available from leading founduppliers worldwide, thus increas
the likelihood that manufacturing capacity will &eailable throughout our products' life cycles. @derently partner principally with Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSMC) to manufeetour semiconductor wafers. We believe that oblefss manufacturing model
significantly reduces our capital requirements athalvs us to focus our resources on design, dewsdop and marketing of our ICs.

Once the silicon wafers have been produttey, are shipped directly to our third-party asslgnsubcontractors. The assembled ICs are
then moved to the final testing stage. This openatian be performed by the same contractor thahased the IC, other third-party test
subcontractors or within our internal facilities3ingapore or Austin, Texas, prior to shipping to customers. We have increasingly utilized
offshore third-party test subcontractors, typicatlyAsia where the parts are assembled and wherprdducts are frequently delivered to our
customers. During fiscal 2007, more than 98% ofumits shipped were tested by offshore third-psesy subcontractors. We expect that our
utilization of offshore third-party test subconti@rs will remain at about this level during fis@4108.

Backlog

As of December 29, 2007, our backlog framtmuing operations was approximately $70.2 millioompared to approximately
$63.0 million as of December 30, 2006. We includbacklog accepted product purchase orders fromomess and worldwide distributor
stocking orders. We only include orders with anestpd shipping date from us within six months. Boberders in our backlog are subject to
changes in delivery schedules or cancellationebtition of the purchaser typically without pena®ur backlog may fluctuate significantly
depending upon customer order patterns which nmayrn, vary considerably based on rapidly changinginess circumstances. Backlog from
distributors is not recognized as revenue untilgiaducts are sold by the distributors. Additiopatiur arrangements with distributors typically
provide for price protection and stock rotation\dties. Accordingly, we do not believe that ourckbpg at any time is necessarily
representative of actual sales for any succeedniggh

Competition

The markets for semiconductors generatig, far analog and mixed-signal ICs in particulae mtensely competitive. We anticipate that
the market for our products will continually evolaad will be subject to rapid technological chanye. believe the principal competitive
factors in our industry are:

. Product size
. Level of integration;
. Product capabilities;

. Reliability;
. Price;

. Performance;
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. Intellectual property

. Customer suppor

. Reputation;

. Ability to rapidly introduce new products to markand
. Power requirement:

We believe that we are competitive withpexs to these factors, particularly because outty@isally are smaller in size, are highly
integrated, achieve high performance specificatairewer price points than competitive productd are manufactured in standard CMOS
which generally enables us to supply them on divels rapid basis to customers to meet their pobdhtroduction schedules. However,
disadvantages we face include our relatively sbpetrating history in certain of our markets andrieed for customers to redesign their
products and modify their software to implement its in their products.

As we target and supply products to numeroarkets and applications, we face competitiomfeorelatively large number of competit
We compete with Analog Devices, Atmel, Broadcomn&ant, Cypress, Epson, Freescale, Fujitsu, Infirleechnologies, Zarlink
Semiconductor, LSI, Maxim Integrated Products, Matiip, National Semiconductor, NXP SemiconductBesesas, Texas Instruments,
Vectron International and others. We expect to famapetition in the future from our current compes, other manufacturers and designel
semiconductors, and innovative start-up semicormggsign companies. Our competitors may also tffiedled chipset kit arrangements
offering a more complete product, which may negdgivmpact our competitive position despite thentécal merits or advantages of our
products. In addition, our customers could develagmucts or technologies internally that would aggl their need for our products and would
become a source of competition. As the marketglfstronic products grow, we also may face competiirom traditional electronic device
companies. These companies may enter the nigethl semiconductor market by introducing theingwoducts, including components witl
their products that would eliminate the need farl@s, or by entering into strategic relationshigg or acquiring other existing IC providers.

Many of our competitors and potential cotitpes have longer operating histories, greater@mamcognition, access to larger customer
bases, complementary product offerings, and siganitly greater financial, sales and marketing, nfecturing, distribution, technical and ott
resources than us. Current and potential compefitave established or may establish financial &natiegjic relationships between themselves
or with our existing or potential customers, remmllor other third parties. Accordingly, it is pds that new competitors or alliances among
competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire sicgnift market share.

Intellectual Property

Our future success depends in part upompraprietary technology. We seek to protect ountebogy through a combination of patents,
copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks and confaléptprocedures. As of December 29, 2007, we dggroximately 800 issued or pending
United States patents in the IC field. We alsodryly file for patent protection in a variety otérnational jurisdictions with respect to the
proprietary technology covered by our U.S. patant patent applications. There can be no assuthatpatents will ever be issued with
respect to these applications. Furthermore, ib&sible that any patents held by us may be invi@ijacircumvented, challenged or licensed to
others. In addition, there can be no assurancestldt patents will provide us with competitive ashe@es or adequately safeguard our
proprietary rights. While we continue to file neatent applications with respect to our recent dgwekents, existing patents are granted for
prescribed time periods and will expire at varitioges in the future.
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We claim copyright protection for proprigtalocumentation for our products. We have filedrigistration, or are in the process of filing
for registration, the visual images of certain i@t the U.S. Copyright Office. We have registetiee "Silicon Laboratories" logo and a vari
of other product and product family names as traad&min the United States and selected foreigsdictions. All other trademarks, service
marks or trade names appearing in this reportrer@roperty of their respective owners. We alsenaptt to protect our trade secrets and other
proprietary information through agreements with customers, suppliers, employees and consultamisth@ough other customary security
measures. We intend to protect our rights vigosgusit there can be no assurance that our effaltbevsuccessful. In addition, the laws of
other countries in which our products are sold matyprotect our products and intellectual propeigits to the same extent as the laws of the
United States.

While our ability to effectively competepbnds in large part on our ability to protect auellectual property, we believe that our
technical expertise and ability to introduce newdurcts in a timely manner will be an important feéh maintaining our competitive position.

Many participants in the semiconductor aefettronics industries have a significant numbevaiénts and have frequently demonstrated a
readiness to commence litigation based on allegaid patent and other intellectual property irggment. From time to time, third parties r
assert infringement claims against us. We may retgil in any such litigation or may not be ablditense any valid and infringed patents
from third parties on commercially reasonable terifrat all. Litigation, regardless of the outconieelikely to result in substantial cost and
diversion of our resources, including our managdfed¢ime. Any such litigation could materially adsely affect us. For further information
regarding patent litigation, please see "ParemiB3. Legal Proceedings."

Our licenses include industry standardngss with our vendors, such as wafer fabricatiohlioraries, third party core libraries,
computer-aided design applications and busines&a applications.

Employees

As of December 29, 2007, we employed 56hfee Our success depends on the continued sexf/mar key technical and senior
management personnel and on our ability to contiawstract, retain and motivate highly skilled laggand mixed-signal engineers. The
competition for such personnel is intense. We hexeer had a work stoppage and none of our empl@reeepresented by a labor
organization. We consider our employee relationsetgood.

Environmental Regulation

Federal, state and local regulations imp@s®us environmental controls on the storage, diseharge and disposal of certain chemicals
and gases used in the semiconductor industry. @upkance with these laws and regulations has adtehmaterial impact on our financial
position or results of operations.

Available Information

Our internet website address is http://wsitabs.com. Our annual report on Form 10-K, qubrteports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filediori$hed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSbeurities Exchange Act of 1934 are
available through the investor relations page ofioternet website free of charge as soon as reddppracticable after we electronically file
such material with, or furnish it to, the Secustind Exchange Commission (SEC). Our internet weshsid the information contained therein
or connected thereto are not intended to be incated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to our Business

We may not be able to maintain our historical growh and may experience significant period-to-periodléictuations in our revenues and
operating results, which may result in volatility in our stock price

Although we have generally experienced mereegrowth in our history, we may not be able tstain this growth. We may also experience
significant period-to-period fluctuations in ourvezues and operating results in the future duentonaber of factors, and any such variations
may cause our stock price to fluctuate. In someréuperiod our revenues or operating results mayelmwv the expectations of public market
analysts or investors. If this occurs, our stodkgopmay drop, perhaps significantly.

A number of factors, in addition to thosted in other risk factors applicable to our busgemay contribute to fluctuations in our rever
and operating results, including:

. The timing and volume of orders received from austomers
. The timeliness of our new product introductions #rerate at which our new products may cannibalireolder products
. The rate of acceptance of our products by our custs, including the acceptance of new products @& develop for

integration in the products manufactured by sudtauers, which we refer to as "design wins";

. The time lag and realization rate between "desigrsaand production order

. The demand for, and life cycles of, the product®iporating our ICs;

. The rate of adoption of mixed-signal ICs in the keds we target;

. Deferrals or reductions of customer orders in gvditton of new products or product enhancements fug or our competitors

other providers of ICs;
. Changes in product mix;

. The average selling prices for our products coutgpuddenly due to competitive offerings or coritpwet predatory pricing
especially with respect to our mobile handset andem products;

. The average selling prices for our products gehedsicline over time;

. Changes in market standards;

. Impairment charges related to inventory, equipneemther lon-lived assets

. The software used in our products and providechird4party software providers may not meet the sescur customers;

. Significant legal costs to defend our intellectpidperty rights or respond to claims against ud; an

. The rate at which new markets emerge for produetsng currently developing or for which our deségpertise can be utilize

to develop products for these new markets.
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The markets for mobile handsets, personi@puters, satellite set-top boxes and VolP apjidinatare characterized by rapid fluctuations
in demand and seasonality that result in correspgritlctuations in the demand for our productd #ra incorporated in such devices.
Additionally, the rate of technology acceptanceohy customers results in fluctuating demand forgreducts as customers are reluctant to
incorporate a new IC into their products until tiev IC has achieved market acceptance. Once a@agHhieves market acceptance, demand
for the new IC can quickly accelerate to a poird #ren level off such that rapid historical growttsales of a product should not be viewed as
indicative of continued future growth. In additialemand can quickly decline for a product whenwa I& product is introduced and receives
market acceptance. Due to the various factors meedi above, the results of any prior quarterlyrorual periods should not be relied upon as
an indication of our future operating performance.

If we are unable to develop or acquire new and enimaed products that achieve market acceptance in &nely manner, our operating
results and competitive position could be harmed

Our future success will depend on our Bbib reduce our dependence on a few products bgldeing or acquiring new ICs and product
enhancements that achieve market acceptancernreyytand cost-effective manner. The developmemiged-signal ICs is highly complex,
and we have at times experienced delays in complétie development and introduction of new prodaats product enhancements. Succe
product development and market acceptance of maugsts depend on a number of factors, including:

. Changing requirements of customers;

. Accurate prediction of market and technical requeets;

. Timely completion and introduction of new desig

. Timely qualification and certification of our ICerfuse in our customers' products;

. Commercial acceptance and volume production optbducts into which our ICs will be incorporated;
. Availability of foundry, assembly and test capar

. Achievement of high manufacturing yields;

. Quality, price, performance, power use and sizeuofproducts;

. Availability, quality, price and performance of cpating products and technologi

. Our customer service, application support capasliand responsivene:

. Successful development of our relationships witisteng and potential customers;

. Changes in technology, industry standards or eedu®ferences; and

. Cooperation of thir-party software providers and our semiconductor vestb support our chips within a syste

We cannot provide any assurance that ptedugich we recently have developed or may devildpe future will achieve market
acceptance. We have introduced to market or adevelopment of many ICs. If our ICs fail to achiewarket acceptance, or if we fail to
develop new products on a timely basis that achieaeket acceptance, our growth prospects, operegsigts and competitive position could
be adversely affected.
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Our research and development efforts are focused amlimited number of new technologies and productand any delay in the
development, or abandonment, of these technologies products by industry participants, or their fail ure to achieve market acceptance,
could compromise our competitive position

Our ICs are used as components in electidenices in various markets. As a result, we ttexeted and expect to continue to devote a
large amount of resources to develop products basesw and emerging technologies and standartdsvthhe commercially introduced in
the future. Excluding discontinued operations, aesie and development expense during fiscal 20078883 million, or 26.5% of revenues. A
number of large companies are actively involvethindevelopment of these new technologies and atdadShould any of these companies
delay or abandon their efforts to develop comméycévailable products based on new technologiessaandards, our research and
development efforts with respect to these techretognd standards likely would have no appreciadlee. In addition, if we do not correctly
anticipate new technologies and standards, oeiptioducts that we develop based on these newdkxjies and standards fail to achieve
market acceptance, our competitors may be bettertaladdress market demand than we would. Furtbwernif markets for these new
technologies and standards develop later than tigi@ate, or do not develop at all, demand for praducts that are currently in development
would suffer, resulting in lower sales of thesedarcts than we currently anticipate.

We depend on a limited number of customers for a &stantial portion of our revenues, and the loss ofyr a significant reduction in
orders from, any key customer could significantly educe our revenues

The loss of any of our key customers, sigaificant reduction in sales to any one of themuld significantly reduce our revenues and
adversely affect our business. During fiscal 2@Q#,ten largest customers accounted for 37% of@wenues from continuing operations.
Some of the markets for our products are dominbyeal small number of potential customers. Therefoue operating results in the foresee
future will continue to depend on our ability tdlde these dominant customers, as well as thétwloil these customers to sell products that
incorporate our IC products. In the future, thesst@mers may decide not to purchase our ICs giaithase fewer ICs than they did in the
or alter their purchasing patterns, particularlgdese:

. We do not have material long-term purchase corgnaith our customers;

. Substantially all of our sales to date have beedenma a purchase order basis, which permits odoes's to cancel, change
delay product purchase commitments with little omotice to us and without penalty;

. Some of our customers may have efforts underwagtively diversify their vendor base which coulduee purchases of our
ICs; and
. Some of our customers have developed or acquikatlpts that compete directly with products thessaraers purchase from

us, which could affect our customers' purchasingsiens in the future.

While we have been a significant supplielGs used in many of our customers' products,coistomers regularly evaluate alternative
sources of supply in order to diversify their sigpbase, which increases their negotiating leveraigh us and protects their ability to secure
these components. We believe that any expansionrofustomers' supplier bases could have an adeéesg on the prices we are able to
charge and volume of product that we are ableltdseur customers, which would negatively affeat revenues and operating results.
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We have increased our international activities sigificantly and plan to continue such efforts, whichsubjects us to additional busines
risks including increased logistical and financiacomplexity, political instability and currency fluctuations

We have established additional internatisnasidiaries and have opened additional offindaternational markets to expand our
international activities in Europe and the Padiim region. This has included the establishmera béadquarters in Singapore for non-U.S.
operations. The percentage of our revenues frorireong operations derived from customers locatetide of the United States was 87% in
fiscal 2007. We may not be able to maintain oreéase international market demand for our prod@s.international operations are subjec
a number of risks, including:

. Increased complexity and costs of managing intenat operations and related tax obligations, iditlg our headquarters for
non-U.S. operations in Singapore;

. Protectionist laws and business practices thatrflmoal competition in some countrie
. Difficulties related to the protection of our inttual property rights in some countries;
. Multiple, conflicting and changing tax and othew$aand regulations that may impact both our intonal and domestic tax a

other liabilities and result in increased complg®ihd costs;

. Longer sales cycles;

. Greater difficulty in accounts receivable colleatiand longer collection periods;

. High levels of distributor inventory subject tog@iprotection and rights of return to

. Political and economic instabilit

. Greater difficulty in hiring and retaining qualifi¢echnical sales and applications engineers aminéstrative personnel; and
. The need to have business and operations systamnsath meet the needs of our international busimedoperating structure.

To date, all of our sales to internatiotizdtomers and purchases of components from intenadisuppliers have been denominated in
dollars. As a result, an increase in the valugnefl.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies comake our products more expensive for our
international customers to purchase, thus rendenimgproducts less competitive.

Failure to manage our distribution channel relatiorships could impede our future growth

The future growth of our business will degén large part on our ability to manage our ietahips with current and future distributors
and sales representatives, develop additional @tafor the distribution and sale of our producetd enanage these relationships. As we
execute our indirect sales strategy, we must mattegpotential conflicts that may arise with ouredt sales efforts. For example, conflicts
with a distributor may arise when a customer beginghasing directly from us rather than throughdrstributor. The inability to successfully
execute or manage a multi-channel sales stratagyg aopede our future growth. In addition, relasbips with our distributors often involve
the use of price protection and inventory retughts. This often requires a significant amountadés management's time and system resource
to manage properly.
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We are subject to increased inventory risks and ct¢s because we build our products based on forecagisovided by customers before
receiving purchase orders for the products

In order to ensure availability of our puats for some of our largest customers, we startrianufacturing of our products in advance of
receiving purchase orders based on forecasts mo\ig these customers. However, these forecaststdepresent binding purchase
commitments and we do not recognize sales for thesgucts until they are shipped to the customsraAesult, we incur inventory and
manufacturing costs in advance of anticipated s&8esause demand for our products may not mategiainanufacturing based on forecasts
subjects us to increased risks of high inventoryy@gg costs, increased obsolescence and increassrdting costs. These inventory risks are
exacerbated when our customers purchase indirgctiygh contract manufacturers or hold componersrnitory levels greater than their
consumption rate because this causes us to haseiddisility regarding the accumulated levels oféntory for such customers. A resulting
write-off of unusable or excess inventories wouddexsely affect our operating results.

We are subject to credit risks related to our acconts receivable

We do not generally obtain letters of ctediother security for payment from customerstritigtors or contract manufacturers.
Accordingly, we are not protected against accoteiteivable default or bankruptcy by these entitias: ten largest customers or distributors
represent a substantial majority of our accourtsivable. If any such customer or distributor weeréecome insolvent or otherwise not satisfy
their obligations to us, we could be materiallyrhad.

Our products are complex and may contain errors whih could lead to product liability, an increase irour costs and/or a reduction in
our revenues

Our products are complex and may contaiorgy particularly when first introduced or as nesvsions are released. Our new products are
increasingly being designed in more complex preeesgich further increases the risk of errors. Al primarily on our in-house testing
personnel to design test operations and procedoidstect any errors prior to delivery of our protuto our customers. Because our products
are manufactured by third parties, should probleotsir in the operation or performance of our ICs,may experience delays in meeting key
introduction dates or scheduled delivery datesurocostomers. These errors also could cause ustio significant re-engineering costs, divert
the attention of our engineering personnel fromproduct development efforts and cause significastomer relations and business repute
problems. Any defects could require product repiaeet or recall or we could be obligated to acceptipct returns. Any of the foregoing
could impose substantial costs and harm our busines

Product liability claims may be assertethwespect to our products. Our products are tylpisald at prices that are significantly lower
than the cost of the end-products into which threyiacorporated. A defect or failure in our prodoculd cause failure in our customer's end-
product, so we could face claims for damages tteatisproportionately higher than the revenuesganéits we receive from the products
involved. Furthermore, product liability risks grarticularly significant with respect to medicabeautomotive applications because of the risk
of serious harm to users of these products. Themeébe no assurance that any insurance we mainthsufficiently protect us from any such
claims.
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Significant litigation over intellectual property in our industry may cause us to become involved irostly and lengthy litigation which
could seriously harm our business

In recent years, there has been signifiliigation in the United States involving pateatsd other intellectual property rights. From time
to time, we receive letters from various industaytigipants alleging infringement of patents, tradeks or misappropriation of trade secrets or
from customers requesting indemnification for clgibmought against them by third parties. The exdy nature of these inquiries has
become relatively common in the semiconductor itrgu$Ve respond when we deem appropriate and dsettlisy legal counsel. We have
been involved in litigation to protect our intelteal property rights in the past and may becomelired in such litigation again in the future.
For example, in December 2006, Analog Devices, fited a lawsuit against us alleging willful infgement of certain intellectual property
rights owned by them—see "Part |, Item 3. LegakBedlings." In the future, we may become involveddditional litigation to defend
allegations of infringement asserted by othersh loliectly and indirectly as a result of certaidustry-standard indemnities we may offer to
our customers. Legal proceedings could subjeab sgghificant liability for damages or invalidatargroprietary rights. Legal proceedings
initiated by us to protect our intellectual progetghts could also result in counterclaims or deusuits against us. Any litigation, regardles
its outcome, would likely be time-consuming andengive to resolve and would divert our manageméntts and attention. Most intellectual
property litigation also could force us to takedfie actions, including:

. Cease selling products that use the challengelieictigal property

. Obtain from the owner of the infringed intellectpabperty a right to a license to sell or use #levant technology, which
license may not be available on reasonable ternms, all;

. Redesign those products that use infringing int&lial property; o

. Pursue legal remedies with third parties to enfatceindemnification rights, which may not adeqlafgotect our interest:

Our customers require our products to undergo a legthy and expensive qualification process without anassurance of product sales

Prior to purchasing our products, our comrs require that our products undergo an extemgiadéfication process, which involves test
of the products in the customer's system as welbasous reliability testing. This qualificatiomgress may continue for six months or longer.
However, qualification of a product by a customeesinot ensure any sales of the product to thédmmes. Even after successful qualification
and sales of a product to a customer, a subsegegsion to the IC or software, changes in the lB&ufacturing process or the selection of a
new supplier by us may require a new qualificapoocess, which may result in delays and in us hgléixcess or obsolete inventory. After our
products are qualified, it can take an additiorahsonths or more before the customer commencasmwelproduction of components or
devices that incorporate our products. Despitectiuegertainties, we devote substantial resourcekiding design, engineering, sales,
marketing and management efforts, toward qualifogproducts with customers in anticipation oesalf we are unsuccessful or delayed in
qualifying any of our products with a customer,fs@ailure or delay would preclude or delay saleswfh product to the customer, which may
impede our growth and cause our business to suffer.
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We rely on third parties to manufacture, assemble iad test our products and the failure to successfulimanage our relationships with
our manufacturers and subcontractors would negativly impact our ability to sell our products

We do not have our own wafer fab manufactufacilities. Therefore, we rely principally ome third-party vendor, Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSMC), to manufeethe ICs we design. We also currently rely oraAshird-party assembly
subcontractors, principally Advanced SemiconduBtogineering (ASE), to assemble and package treosilthips provided by the wafers for
use in final products. Additionally, we rely on #geoffshore subcontractors for a substantial poiitthe testing requirements of our products
prior to shipping. We expect utilization of thir@uy subcontractors to continue in the future.

The cyclical nature of the semiconductaluistry drives wide fluctuations in available capgeit third-party vendors. On occasion, we
have been unable to adequately respond to unexpecieases in customer demand due to capacityredms and, therefore, were unable to
benefit from this incremental demand. We may bebleto obtain adequate foundry, assembly or tgsa@ty from our third-party
subcontractors to meet our customers' deliveryirements even if we adequately forecast customerade.

There are significant risks associated weliiing on these third-party foundries and subi@otors, including:

. Failure by us, our customers or their end custortregsialify a selected supplier;
. Potential insolvency of the third-party subcontoast

. Reduced control over delivery schedules and qu:

. Limited warranties on wafers or products suppledg;

. Potential increases in prices or payments in advéorccapacity;

. Increased need for internatio-based supply, logistics and financial managen
. Their inability to supply or support new or chargipackaging technologies; a

. Low test yields.

We typically do not have long-term suppbntracts with our third-party vendors which oblig#te vendor to perform services and supply
products to us for a specific period, in specifi@ntities, and at specific prices. Our third-pdoiyndry, assembly and test subcontractors
typically do not guarantee that adequate capaditypes available to us within the time requiredni@et demand for our products. In the event
that these vendors fail to meet our demand for exeatreason, we expect that it would take up tdvieveronths to transition performance of
these services to new providers. Such a trangitiay also require gualification of the new provideysour customers or their end customers.

Since our inception, most of the silicorfeva for the products that we have shipped wereufeatured either by TSMC or its affiliates.
Our customers typically complete their own quadifion process. If we fail to properly balance costo demand across the existing
semiconductor fabrication facilities that we utlliar are required by our foundry partners to ineeear otherwise change the number of fab
lines that we utilize for our production, we migttt be able to fulfill demand for our products andy need to divert our engineering resources
away from new product development initiatives tpmart the fab line transition, which would adveysaffect our operating results.
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Our products incorporate technology licensed fromhird parties

We incorporate technology (including softejdicensed from third parties in our products. véeld be subjected to claims of
infringement regardless of our lack of involvementhe development of the licensed technology. @dih a third party licensor is typically
obligated to indemnify us if the licensed technglagfringes on another party's intellectual propeights, such indemnification is typically
limited in amount and may be worthless if the Ie@nbecomes insolvent. See "Significant litigatbwer intellectual property in our industry
may cause us to become involved in costly and leniifigation which could seriously harm our busiee Furthermore, any failure of third
party technology to perform properly would adveysafect sales of our products incorporating swehhology.

Our inability to manage growth could materially and adversely affect our business

Our past growth has placed, and any fujuogth of our operations will continue to placesignificant strain on our management
personnel, systems and resources. We anticipatevéhaill need to implement a variety of new andtguled sales, operational and financial
enterprise-wide systems, information technologyaistiructure, procedures and controls, includingrfgrovement of our accounting and other
internal management systems to manage this gravathmeintain compliance with regulatory guidelinies)uding Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requirements. In April 2007, we implemented a gl@rderprise resource planning (ERP) system to bglimprove our planning and
management processes. We have experienced, andomizyue to experience, challenges in implemerttiegnew ERP system and other
related systems that could adversely affect ouinlegs by disrupting our ability to timely and actiety process and report key components of
our financial position, affecting our ability to mplete the evaluation of our internal control ofieancial reporting and attestation activities
pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2DO2 or disrupting our ability to process certaiamsactions necessary for our operations.
To the extent our business grows, our internal mament systems and processes will need to impoogadure that we remain in compliance.
We also expect that we will need to continue toagx}y train, manage and motivate our workforce oAthese endeavors will require
substantial management effort, and we anticipatewre will require additional management persommel internal processes to manage these
efforts and to plan for the succession from timértee of certain persons who have been key manageamel technical personnel. If we are
unable to effectively manage our expanding glolparations, including our international headquarneiSingapore, our business could be
materially and adversely affected.

We are subject to risks relating to product concermition and lack of revenue diversification

We derive a substantial portion of our rexes from a limited number of products, and we ekffese products to continue to account for
a large percentage of our revenues in the near teomtinued market acceptance of these produdiseisfore, critical to our future success. In
addition, substantially all of our products that nseve sold include technology related to one oramdrour issued U.S. patents. If these patents
are found to be invalid or unenforceable, our catitqrs could introduce competitive products thatldareduce both the volume and price per
unit of our products. Our business, operating tesfihancial condition and cash flows could therefbe adversely affected by:

. A decline in demand for any of our more significandducts, including our modem products, FM tureerBroSLIC;
. Failure of our products to achieve continued maaoeeptance
. An improved version of our products being offergdabcompetitor;
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. New technological standards or changes to existiagdards that we are unable to address with @aupts;
. A failure to release new products or enhanced olessof our existing products on a timely basis;

. The failure of our new products to achieve markeeatance.

We depend on our key personnel to manage our busise effectively in a rapidly changing market, and ifve are unable to retain our
current personnel and hire additional personnel, ouability to develop and successfully market our poducts could be harmed

We believe our future success will depanthige part upon our ability to attract and retaghly skilled managerial, engineering, sales
and marketing personnel. We believe that our fusueeess will be dependent on retaining the sesvo€eur key personnel, developing their
successors and certain internal processes to re@dmaeliance on specific individuals, and on prbpenanaging the transition of key roles
when they occur. There is currently a shortageualified personnel with significant experiencelie tesign, development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of analog and mixed-signal liCparticular, there is a shortage of engineers ate familiar with the intricacies of the
design and manufacturability of analog elementd,@mpetition for such personnel is intense. Oyrtkehnical personnel represent a
significant asset and serve as the primary sownceur technological and product innovations. Wemet be successful in attracting and
retaining sufficient numbers of technical personinedupport our anticipated growth. The loss of ahgur key employees or the inability to
attract or retain qualified personnel both in thated States and internationally, including engisgsales, applications and marketing
personnel, could delay the development and intrboluof, and negatively impact our ability to selyr products.

Any acquisitions we make could disrupt our businesand harm our financial condition

As part of our growth and product diversition strategy, we continue to evaluate opporiesitb acquire other businesses, intellectual
property or technologies that would complementaurent offerings, expand the breadth of our marketenhance our technical capabilities.
The acquisitions that we have made and may matteeifuture entail a number of risks that could matly and adversely affect our business
and operating results, including:

. Problems integrating the acquired operations, teldyies or products with our existing business aratlucts;
. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre business;

. Need for financial resources above our plannedsimrent levels

. Difficulties in retaining business relationshipgiwsuppliers and customers of the acquired comg

. Risks associated with entering markets in whicHag& prior experience;

. Risks associated with the transfer of licensesialiectual property;

. Tax issues associated with acquisitic

. Acquisitior-related disputes, including disputes over -outs and escrow:

. Potential loss of key employees of the acquiredpaomy; and

. Potential impairment of related goodwill and intdolg assets
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Future acquisitions also could cause usdor debt or contingent liabilities or cause ussgue equity securities that could negatively
impact the ownership percentages of existing sluddels.

Any dispositions we make could harm our financial ondition

In connection with our sale of the Aerogrot lines, we incurred various risks. This disfosiand any disposition that we may make in
the future entail a number of risks that could matly and adversely affect our business and opegaesults, including:

. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre business;

. Difficulties separating the divested business;

. Risks to relations with customers who previouslychased products from our disposed product li

. Reduced leverage with suppliers due to reducecegagge volume

. Risks related to employee relations;

. Risks associated with the transfer and licensinigteflectual property;

. Security risks and other liabilities related to trensition services provided in connection with thsposition
. Tax issues associated with dispositions; and

. Disposition-related disputes, including disputesrozarn-outs and escrows.

Our stock price may be volatile

The market price of our common stock hanblatile in the past and may be volatile infitere. The market price of our common
stock may be significantly affected by the follogifactors:

. Actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

. Changes in financial estimates by securities ateatysour failure to perform in line with such esdtes;

. Changes in market valuations of other technologymanies, particularly semiconductor compan

. Announcements by us or our competitors of significachnical innovations, acquisitions, strategidiperships, joint venture

or capital commitments;

. Introduction of technologies or product enhancesémit reduce the need for our products;
. The loss of, or decrease in sales to, one or meyelstomers

. A large sale of stock by a significant shareholder;

. Dilution from the issuance of our stock in conneetwith acquisitions;

. The addition or removal of our stock to or fromtack index fund

. Departures of key personnel; a

. The required expensing of stock options.

The stock market has experienced extrertaility that often has been unrelated to the prenimnce of particular companies. These mg
fluctuations may cause our stock price to fall rdgss of our performance.
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Most of our current manufacturers, assemblers, tesservice providers, distributors and customers areoncentrated in the same
geographic region, which increases the risk that aatural disaster, epidemic, labor strike, war or pditical unrest could disrupt our
operations or sales

Most of TSMC's foundries and several of assembly and test subcontractors' sites are thaafEaiwan and our other assembly and test
subcontractors are located in the Pacific Rim negio addition, many of our customers are locatethé Pacific Rim region. The risk of
earthquakes in Taiwan and the Pacific Rim regimigaificant due to the proximity of major earthgadault lines in the area. We are not
currently covered by insurance against businessmtion caused by earthquakes as such insurame# @urrently available on terms that we
believe are commercially reasonable. Earthquakes flooding, lack of water or other natural ditgas, an epidemic, political unrest, war, la
strikes or work stoppages in countries where omrigenductor manufacturers, assemblers and tesbatiactors are located, likely would
result in the disruption of our foundry, assembiyeast capacity. There can be no assurance thataternate capacity could be obtained on
favorable terms, if at all.

A natural disaster, epidemic, labor strikar or political unrest where our customers' fie# are located would likely reduce our sales to
such customers. North Korea's geopolitical manengsrhave created unrest. Such unrest could ceeatgomic uncertainty or instability,
could escalate to war or otherwise adversely aBectth Korea and our South Korean customers angteeour sales to such customers, which
would materially and adversely affect our operatiegults. In addition, a significant portion of thesembly and testing of our products occurs
in South Korea. Any disruption resulting from thesents could also cause significant delays inrshigts of our products until we are able to
shift our manufacturing, assembling or testing frthim affected subcontractor to another third-paetydor.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual propety, which would negatively affect our ability to canpete

Our products rely on our proprietary tedbgyg, and we expect that future technological adearmade by us will be critical to sustain
market acceptance of our products. Therefore, Weuethat the protection of our intellectual prayeights is and will continue to be
important to the success of our business. We melg combination of patent, copyright, trademark giade secret laws and restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual propertyhtgy We also enter into confidentiality or licermggeements with our employees, consultants,
intellectual property providers and business pastrend control access to and distribution of aauinentation and other proprietary
information. Despite these efforts, unauthorizedigs may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain asel aur proprietary technology. Monitoring
unauthorized use of our technology is difficultdame cannot be certain that the steps we have taltlieprevent unauthorized use of our
technology, particularly in foreign countries whée laws may not protect our proprietary rightudly as in the United States. We cannot be
certain that patents will be issued as a resubuofpending applications nor can we be certainahgtissued patents would protect or benefit us
or give us adequate protection from competing petsld-or example, issued patents may be circumgeanrtehallenged and declared invalic
unenforceable. We also cannot be certain that thigrnot develop effective competing technologiestheir own.
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The semiconductor manufacturing process is highlyamplex and, from time to time, manufacturing yieldsmay fall below our
expectations, which could result in our inability b satisfy demand for our products in a timely manneand may decrease our gross
margins due to higher unit costs

The manufacturing of our products is a higlomplex and technologically demanding procesthdugh we work closely with our
foundries to minimize the likelihood of reduced ratacturing yields, our foundries from time to tirnave experienced lower than anticipated
manufacturing yields. Changes in manufacturing @sees or the inadvertent use of defective or cantaad materials by our foundries could
result in lower than anticipated manufacturing gsebr unacceptable performance deficiencies, wticid lower our gross profits. If our
foundries fail to deliver fabricated silicon wafafsatisfactory quality in a timely manner, weoié unable to meet our customers' demand for
our products in a timely manner, which would adedraffect our operating results and damage ouiocusr relationships.

We depend on our customers to support our productand some of our customers offer competing products

Our products are currently used by ouraustrs to produce modems, telephony equipment, mbhbihdsets, networking equipment and a
broad range of other devices. We rely on our custsrto provide hardware, software, intellectualperty indemnification and other technical
support for the products supplied by our customémmur customers do not provide the required fiomality or if our customers do not provide
satisfactory support for their products, the dem@ndhese devices that incorporate our productg diminish or we may otherwise be
materially adversely affected. Any reduction in tremand for these devices would significantly redowgr revenues.

In certain products such as the DAA, soineun customers offer their own competitive produdthese customers may find it
advantageous to support their own offerings inntfaeketplace in lieu of promoting our products.

We could seek to raise additional capital in the fuure through the issuance of equity or debt securiés, but additional capital may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all

We believe that our existing cash, cashvadents and investments will be sufficient to meet working capital needs, capital
expenditures, investment requirements and commirfenat least the next 12 months. However, jitdssible that we may need to raise
additional funds to finance our activities or teiftate acquisitions of other businesses, produntsllectual property or technologies. We
believe we could raise these funds, if neededghbing equity or debt securities to the public @stlected investors. In addition, even though
we may not need additional funds, we may still elecell additional equity or debt securities btain credit facilities for other reasons.
However, we may not be able to obtain additionabiion favorable terms, or at all. If we decidestige additional funds by issuing equity or
convertible debt securities, the ownership pergagaf existing shareholders would be reduced.
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We are a relatively small company with limited resarces compared to some of our current and potentiatompetitors and we may no
be able to compete effectively and increase markehare

Some of our current and potential competit@ave longer operating histories, significantigajer resources and name recognition and a
larger base of customers than we have. As a réksalie competitors may have greater credibilitywilr existing and potential customers.
They also may be able to adopt more aggressivangraplicies and devote greater resources to theldpment, promotion and sale of their
products than we can to ours. In addition, somauofcurrent and potential competitors have alrezstgblished supplier or joint development
relationships with the decision makers at our aurog potential customers. These competitors magtibe to leverage their existing
relationships to discourage their customers fromelpasing products from us or persuade them to cepar products with their products. Our
competitors may also offer bundled chipset kit mgements offering a more complete product despéeaechnical merits or advantages of our
products. These competitors may elect not to sumporproducts which could complicate our salesrgdf These and other competitive
pressures may prevent us from competing succegsfgdinst current or future competitors, and magenely harm our business. Competiti
could decrease our prices, reduce our sales, lowegross profits and/or decrease our market share.

Provisions in our charter documents and Delaware M could prevent, delay or impede a change in conttef us and may reduce the
market price of our common stock

Provisions of our certificate of incorpaost and bylaws could have the effect of discourggdelaying or preventing a merger or
acquisition that a stockholder may consider favierabor example, our certificate of incorporatiorddylaws provide for:

. The division of our Board of Directors into thrdasses to be elected on a staggered basis, osecdels yeal

. The ability of our Board of Directors to issue sgof our preferred stock in one or more seriebawit further authorization ¢
our stockholders;

. A prohibition on stockholder action by written cens,
. Elimination of the right of stockholders to calspecial meeting of stockholde
. A requirement that stockholders provide advanceeadatf any stockholder nominations of directorany proposal of new

business to be considered at any meeting of stéaéisy and

. A requirement that a supermajority vote be obtaiioe@imend or repeal certain provisions of our fiedtie of incorporation

We also are subject to the aatieover laws of Delaware which may discourageaydel prevent someone from acquiring or mergindp
us, which may adversely affect the market pricelofcommon stock.

Risks related to our industry
We are subject to the cyclical nature of the semicwluctor industry, which has been subject to signitiant fluctuations

The semiconductor industry is highly cyaliand is characterized by constant and rapid m@olical change, rapid product obsolescence
and price erosion, evolving standards, short prolifeccycles and wide fluctuations in product slyppnd demand. The industry has
experienced significant fluctuations, often conedawith, or in anticipation of, maturing producictss and new product introductions of both
semiconductor companies' and their customers' gtedund fluctuations in general economic conditions
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Downturns have been characterized by dshedl product demand, production overcapacity, imgéntory levels and accelerated erosion
of average selling prices. For example, in fis€02, the semiconductor industry suffered a downtlua to reductions in the actual unit sales
of personal computers and wireless phones as ceapaprevious robust forecasts. This downturnltedun a material adverse effect on our
business and operating results in fiscal 2001.

Upturns have been characterized by inccepseduct demand and production capacity consgairgated by increased competition for
access to third-party foundry, assembly and tgsacity. We are dependent on the availability ofhscapacity to manufacture, assemble and
test our ICs. None of our third-party foundry, asbé or test subcontractors have provided assusathed adequate capacity will be available
to us.

The average selling prices of our products could deease rapidly which may negatively impact our reveues and gross profits

We may experience substantial period-téepleftuctuations in future operating results duehe erosion of our average selling prices. We
have reduced the average unit price of our prodod@sticipation of or in response to competitiveeing pressures, new product introductions
by us or our competitors and other factors. If weewmnable to offset any such reductions in ouragyeiselling prices by increasing our sales
volumes, increasing our sales content per appbicair reducing production costs, our gross prafitd revenues will suffer. To maintain our
gross profit percentage, we will need to develogh iatroduce new products and product enhancemengstionely basis and continually reduce
our costs. Our failure to do so could cause ouemaes and gross profit percentage to decline.

Competition within the numerous markets we target nay reduce sales of our products and reduce our mast share

The markets for semiconductors in genarad, for mixed-signal ICs in particular, are intdpsmmpetitive. We expect that the market for
our products will continually evolve and will belgect to rapid technological change. In additiahwe target and supply products to nume
markets and applications, we face competition feoralatively large number of competitors. We corapeith Analog Devices, Atmel,
Broadcom, Conexant, Cypress, Epson, Freescalgstujnfineon Technologies, Zarlink Semiconductd|, Maxim Integrated Products,
Microchip, National Semiconductor, NXP Semicondustdrenesas, Texas Instruments, Vectron Interredtaomd others. We expect to face
competition in the future from our current compm@st, other manufacturers and designers of semiatody and start-up semiconductor design
companies. As the markets for communications prizdgiow, we also may face competition from tradiibcommunications device
companies. These companies may enter the mixedisggmiconductor market by introducing their owis & by entering into strategic
relationships with or acquiring other existing piders of semiconductor products. In addition, latgempanies may restructure their operations
to create separate companies or may acquire neiwdssgs that are focused on providing the typ@sarfucts we produce or acquire our
customers.
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Our products must conform to industry standards andtechnology in order to be accepted by end users our markets

Generally, our products comprise only & péa device. All components of such devices nungformly comply with industry standards
order to operate efficiently together. We depend¢@mpanies that provide other components of thécds\to support prevailing industry
standards. Many of these companies are significéantjer and more influential in affecting indusstandards than we are. Some industry
standards may not be widely adopted or implememtéfdrmly, and competing standards may emergerttegt be preferred by our customers
or end users. If larger companies do not supperséme industry standards that we do, or if comgetiandards emerge, market acceptance of
our products could be adversely affected which @dwdrm our business.

Products for certain applications are basethdustry standards that are continually evgvi@ur ability to compete in the future will
depend on our ability to identify and ensure coanudie with these evolving industry standards. Thergance of new industry standards could
render our products incompatible with products tigwed by other suppliers. As a result, we coulddepiired to invest significant time and
effort and to incur significant expense to redesignproducts to ensure compliance with relevaariddrds. If our products are not in
compliance with prevailing industry standards faignificant period of time, we could miss oppoiti@s to achieve crucial design wins.

Our pursuit of necessary technological adea may require substantial time and expense. Wenwot be successful in developing or
using new technologies or in developing new prasloctproduct enhancements that achieve market et If our ICs fail to achieve mar
acceptance, our growth prospects, operating reasnttscompetitive position could be adversely aéfdct

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Our primary facilities, housing engineerisgles and marketing, administration and testaijmers, are located in Austin, Texas. These
facilities consist of approximately 150,000 squiaet of leased floor space with lease terms expigitivarious dates through 2013. In addition
to these properties, we lease smaller facilitiegairious locations in the United States, ChinanEea Germany, Japan, South Korea, Singapore,
Taiwan and the United Kingdom for engineering, sa@ed marketing, administrative and manufacturimgpsrt activities. We believe that th:
facilities are suitable and adequate to meet otrentioperating needs.
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Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings
Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action comipiar violations of U.S. federal securities lawasifiled in the United States District Court
the Southern District of New York against us, fotiour officers individually and the three investméanking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connecti@h wur initial public offering of common stock. &Consolidated Amended Complaint
alleges that the registration statement and pragpdar our initial public offering did not discleghat (1) the underwriters solicited and
received additional, excessive and undisclosed dseioms from certain investors, and (2) the unditeng had agreed to allocate shares of the
offering in exchange for a commitment from the oustrs to purchase additional shares in the aftéehat pre-determined higher prices. The
action seeks damages in an unspecified amountsamelrg coordinated with approximately 300 otherlyeidentical actions filed against otl
companies. A court order dated October 9, 2002 id&sad without prejudice our four officers who hagtb named individually. On
February 19, 2003, the District Court denied thdiomoto dismiss the complaint against us. On Deambh 2006, the Second Circuit vacated a
decision by the District Court granting class dedtion in six "focus” cases, which are intendedérve as test cases. The plaintiffs selected
these six cases, which do not include us. The Gagtindicated that its decisions in the six fotases are intended to provide strong guidance
for the parties in the remaining cases. On AprR@)7, the Second Circuit denied a petition foeseing filed by plaintiffs, but noted that
plaintiffs could ask the District Court to certifiyore narrow classes than those that were rejected.

Prior to the Second Circuit's December@B&decision, we had approved a settlement agreeandrrelated agreements which set forth
the terms of a settlement between us, the purpepigedtiff class and the vast majority of the othgproximately 300 issuer defendants. These
agreements were submitted to the District Courfiroval. In light of the Second Circuit's opinitime parties agreed that the settlement ¢
not be approved. On June 25, 2007, the DistrictrCapproved a stipulation filed by the issuers plaintiffs which terminated the settlement.
On August 14, 2007, the plaintiffs filed amendechptaints in the six focus cases. The amended contplmclude a number of changes, such
as changes to the definition of the purported atdissvestors, and the elimination of the indivitldafendants as defendants. The six focus
issuers and the underwriters named as defendatits flocus cases filed a motion to dismiss the a@®emromplaints against them on
November 14, 2007. On Septem 27, 2007, the plaintiffs filed a motion for classtification in the six focus cases. On December2®D7,
the issuers and the underwriters filed a motionogpp plaintiffs’ class certification motion, aretplaintiffs filed an opposition to defendants'
motions to dismiss.

We are unable to estimate or predict them@l damages that might be awarded as a refstilisditigation, whether such damages would
be greater than our insurance coverage, or whteesutcome would have a material impact on ourlteef operations or financial position.
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Patent and Copyright Infringement Litigatit

On December 14, 2006, Analog Devices, (Aoalog Devices), a Massachusetts corporatiord filéawsuit against us, in the United St
District Court in the District of Massachusettdeging infringement of United States Patents N¢375%,329, 6,262,600, 6,525,566, 6,903,578
and 6,873,065, and copyright infringement of certanalog Devices datasheets. On January 31, 208Tiled our answer to Analog Devices'
complaint, in which we denied infringement and agskthat Analog Devices' patents are invalid. Wée filed counterclaims in which we
alleged that Analog Devices has engaged in unfaimpetition under both state and federal law. Thetrigt Court has scheduled a trial date in
May 2008. The Court held a Markman patent claimstmction hearing in November 2007. Following thaaring, Analog Devices withdrew
United States Patent No. 6,903,578 from the lawsuiDecember 6, 2007. The lawsuit relates to o843 and Si844x family of digital
isolator products and alleges that the infringemea and continues to be willful. At this time, wennot estimate the outcome of this matte
resulting financial impact to us, if any.

On September 17, 2007, we filed a lawsgétiast Analog Devices in the United States Distiourt for the Eastern District of Texas,
Marshall Division, alleging infringement of Unit&tates Patent No. 7,171,542. This patent relateartproprietary technology for a
reconfigurable processor system. On October 9, 2067 amended the complaint to further allege igleiment of U.S. Patents Nos. 6,137,372,
7,209,061, and 7,199,650. The patents relate tpmyrietary technology for radio frequency trargess. In the lawsuit, we request an
injunction against further infringement and paymeindctual damages, interest and costs. At this,time cannot estimate the outcome of this
matter or resulting financial impact to us, if any.

Other

We are involved in various other legal gedings that have arisen in the normal course sihbas. While the ultimate results of these
matters cannot be predicted with certainty, we aloexpect them to have a material adverse effetih@rconsolidated financial position or
results of operations.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secity Holders
None.
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Part Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Market Information and Holders

Our registration statement (Registration 888-94853) under the Securities Act of 1933,rasraded, relating to our initial public offering
of our common stock became effective on March 2802 Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ NwtidMarket (NASDAQ) under
the symbol "SLAB". The table below shows the higld éow per-share sales prices of our common stockhi periods indicated, as reported
by NASDAQ. As of January 31, 2008, there were 18Mérs of record of our common stock.

High Low

Fiscal Year 200!

First Quarte! $ 56.06 $ 36.2

Second Quarte 60.0( 31.3(

Third Quartel 38.7¢ 28.4:

Fourth Quarte 36.5¢ 29.7i
Fiscal Year 200’

First Quarte $ 353¢ $ 289

Second Quarte 35.5] 29.7¢

Third Quartel 42.7¢ 34.1:

Fourth Quarte 44 .4¢ 35.7¢

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any casdelids on our common stock and we do not interhtocash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We currently expect to retain any futuren@ays to fund the operation and expansion of ausiress.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below shows a compak$aumulative total stockholder returns for andgstment in Silicon Laboratories Inc.
common stock, the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Inéex] the NASDAQ Electronic Components Index.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG SILICON LABORATORIES INC.,
THE NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S.) INDEX
AND THE NASDAQ ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS INDEX
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1) The graph assumes that $100 was invested in oumeconstock and in each index at the market closeenember 29, 2001, and that
dividends were reinvested. No cash dividends haea ldeclared on our common stock.

2) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthowok be considered indicative of future stockholé¢urns.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

The following table summarizes repurchadesur common stock during the three months endecebhber 29, 2007:

Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value of

Shares Purchased Shares that May

as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Total Number of Average Price Announced Plans Under the Plans or

Period Shares Purchased (1) Paid per Share or Programs Programs
September 30, 20(- October 27
2007 368,90¢ $ 42.41 368,06 $ 351,593,12
October 28, 200- November 24
2007 946,12: $ 37.9i 940,87 $ 315,877,72
November 28, 200-
December 29, 200 1,660,87" $ 37.1¢ 1,629,27. $ 255,364,79
Total 297591 $ 38.07 2,938,21.

(D) Includes 37,701 shares of our common stock withbglds to satisfy employee tax obligations uportingsf certain stock grants me
under our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan.

On July 25, 2007, we announced that ourdoéDirectors authorized a program to repurchgsé $400 million of our common stock.
Such repurchases may occur over ar@hth period ending July 31, 2009. The programvadifor repurchases to be made in the open mar|
in private transactions, including structured crederated transactions, subject to applicable legalirements and market conditions.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dati

You should read this selected consolidéitexhcial data in conjunction with "Management's@ission and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations," our constédiddinancial statements and the notes to thosensémts included in this Form 10-K.
Financial data for fiscal years 2003 through 208§ lheen reclassified to reflect the sale of ounérAero product lines as discontinued
operations. The sale of these product lines closellarch 23, 2007. See Note 3, "Discontinued Opmratto the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information.

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Income C
Revenue: $ 337,46 $ 288,15t $ 238,58 $ 235,967 $  188,64¢
Operating incom 23,091 6,05%(3) 18,94%(4) 40,23t 27,23.
Income from continuing operatiol 39,68 15,3443) 17,6944) 31,97¢ 19,51:
Income from discontinued operations,
of income taxe: 165,14¢1) 15,81 29,80 44,714 25,20¢
Net income $ 204,83t((1) $ 31,1543) $ 47,50¢(4) $ 76,69: $ 44,71¢
Income from continuing operations
per share

Basic $ 0.7z $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3 $ 06z $ 0.4C

Diluted $ 0.7¢ $ 0.2 $ 0.32 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.37
Consolidated Balance Sheet D
Cash, cash equivalents and short-tern
investment: $ 572,9742) $ 386,29: $ 363,71( $ 277,10¢ $  190,31:
Working capital 599,30((2) 402,08t 369,30« 294,55 202,71.
Total asset 840,24((2) 686,99! 601,06: 481,12: 378,09!
Long-term obligation: 43,30¢ 16,69 7,41¢ 2,57( 9,96:
Total stockholders' equi 703,54! 568,68 498,04¢ 399,48 287,20!

1) Includes a gain on the sale of our Aero produ@djmet of related income taxes.

(2) Includes proceeds from the sale of our Aero protines.

3) As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrste&ements, effective January 1, 2006, we chaongedhethod of accounting fi
stock-based compensation to conform to Financiabfoting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of FilshAccounting Standards
(SFAS) 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based PaymeBFAS 123R).

4) Includes a charge for acquired research and dewveopcosts in connection with our acquisition dic6h MAGIKE.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of financiahdition and results of operations should be rgadonjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes theretouidet! elsewhere in this report. This discussionaiostforwarc-looking statements. Please ¢
the "Cautionary Statement" and "Risk Factors" abforediscussions of the uncertainties, risks ansbiagptions associated with these
statements. Our fiscal year-end financial reportpegiods are a 52- or 53- week year ending on thei8ay closest to December 31st. Fiscal
years 2007, 2006 and 2005 were-week years and ended December 29, 2007, Decemp2036 and December 31, 2005, respectively. F
year 2008 will have 53 weeks with the extra weekiwing in the first quarter of the year. Exceptrasted, financial results are for continuil
operations. Our former Aero product lines are reteoras discontinued operations. The sale of thesgugt lines closed on March 23, 2007.

Overview

We design and develop proprietary, anatdgrisive, mixed-signal integrated circuits (ICg)ddoroad range of applications. Mixed-signal
ICs are electronic components that convert realdvamalog signals, such as sound and radio wanesdigital signals that electronic products
can process. Therefore, mixed-signal ICs are atitomponents in a broad range of applicationsviargety of markets, including
communications, consumer, industrial, automotivedital and power management. Our major customehsda 2Wire, Garmin, Global
Navigation Systems, LG Electronics, Motorola, Pan&s Philips, Sagem, Samsung and Thom

As a "fabless" semiconductor company, e aa thirdparty semiconductor fabricators in Asia, and tessér extent the United States
manufacture the silicon wafers that reflect oudisigns. Each wafer contains numerous die, whieteatr from the wafer to create a chip for
an IC. We rely on third-parties in Asia to assemphlckage, and, in the substantial majority of satest these devices and ship these units to
our customers. We have increased the portion thgeperformed by such third parties, which faeiiis faster delivery of products to our
customers (particularly those located in Asia),rergoroduction cycle times, lower inventory reguirents, lower costs and increased flexik
of test capacity.

Our product set addresses a variety ofddtimsed mixed-signal applications. Our expertisgnalog-intensive, high-performance, mixed-
signal ICs enables us to develop highly differgetissolutions that address multiple markets. Wegiaur products into the following
categories:

. Broadcast products, which include our broadcasbrateivers and transmitters, satellite set-topreaeivers and satellite radio
tuner;

. ISOmodem embedded moder

. Voice over IP (VolP) products, which include ounBLIC subscriber line interface circuits and vaigect access arrangement
(DAA);

. Microcontrollers;

. Timing products, which include our clocks, precismock & data recovery ICs and oscillators;

. Power products, which include our isolators, cursemsors and Power over Ethernet devices; and

. Mature products, which include our silicon DAA € modems, DSL analog front end ICs, optical platsayer transceiver

and RF Synthesizers.

36




Through acquisitions and internal developnedforts, we have continued to diversify our protportfolio and introduce next generation
ICs with added functionality and further integratidn fiscal 2007, we introduced a dual-functiongse-port Power over Ethernet (PoE)
controller with an integrated dc-dc controller fmwer sourcing equipment, fully-integrated AM/FMli@receivers with short-wave and long-
wave band coverage, a family of single-chip AC entrsensors, a dual ProSLIC for VolP equipmentjlfasof jitter-attenuating any-rate
clock multipliers and oscillators, single-chip Fildio transceivers and we further expanded our diorati factor family of microcontrollers.
We plan to continue to introduce products thatéase the content we provide for existing applicatichereby enabling us to serve market:
do not currently address and expanding our totail@ve market opportunity.

We had no customers that accounted for rthane 10% of our revenues from continuing operatiduaring fiscal 2007 or 2006. During
fiscal 2005, LSI represented 11% of our revenuas fcontinuing operations and no other single erstocner accounted for more than 10%. In
addition to direct sales to customers, some ofodrcustomers purchase products indirectly fromrmigh distributors and contract
manufacturers. An end customer purchasing througgn&ract manufacturer typically instructs suchtcaet manufacturer to obtain our
products and incorporate such products with otberponents for sale by such contract manufacturdre@nd customer. Although we actus
sell the products to, and are paid by, the distoitsuand contract manufacturers, we refer to sachceistomer as our customer. Two of our
distributors, Edom Technology and Avnet, represgBt2 and 10% of our revenues from continuing dpmra during fiscal 2007, and 33%
and 13% of our revenues from continuing operatahuring fiscal 2006, respectively. Edom represe3@h of our revenues from continuing
operations during fiscal 2005. There were no otligributors or contract manufacturers that accedifior more than 10% of our revenues f
continuing operations in fiscal 2007, 2006 or 2005.

The percentage of our revenues from coimghaperations derived from customers located datsf the United States was 87% in fiscal
2007, 84% in fiscal 2006 and 85% in fiscal 2005jchitreflects our product and customer diversifizatand market penetration for our
products, as many of our customers manufacturelasigin their products in Asia. All of our reventeslate have been denominated in U.S.
dollars. We believe that a majority of our revenudiscontinue to be derived from customers outsifi¢he United States.

The sales cycle for the test and evaluadfasur ICs can be as long as 12 months or moreadtitional three to six months or more are
usually required before a customer ships a sigmitizolume of devices that incorporate our ICs. Buthis lengthy sales cycle, we typically
experience a significant delay between incurriregeaech and development and selling, general anih&drative expenses, and the
corresponding sales. Consequently, if sales inqaayter do not occur when expected, expenses aedtory levels could be
disproportionately high, and our operating resfdtshat quarter and, potentially, future quartemuld be adversely affected. Moreover, the
amount of time between initial research and devakt and commercialization of a product, if evan be substantially longer than the sales
cycle for the product. Accordingly, if we incur sténtial research and development costs withowtldping a commercially successful
product, our operating results, as well as our gngwospects, could be adversely affected.

Because many of our ICs are designed feliiusonsumer products such as personal comppensonal video recorders, set-top boxes
and mobile handsets, we expect that the demarnslufgoroducts will be typically subject to some degof seasonal demand. However, rapid
changes in our markets and across our product araks it difficult for us to accurately estimate fimpact of seasonal factors on our busir
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Discontinued Operation

On March 23, 2007, we sold our Aero trangre AeroFONE single-chip phone and power amglifioduct lines to NXP for
$285 million in cash, plus additional earn-out i of up to an aggregate of $65 million over thkowing three years. The results of
operations of the sold product lines have beereptesl as discontinued operations.

Results of Operations
The following describes the line itemsfeeth in our consolidated statements of income:

Revenues. Revenues are generated almost exclusivelyleg s&our ICs. We recognize revenue on sales alierf the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehatdn arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsobaarred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonaldgared. Generally, we recognize revenue from pitoghles to direct customers and contract
manufacturers upon shipment. Certain of our salesnade to distributors under agreements allowartam rights of return and price
protection on products unsold by distributors. Adaogly, we defer the revenue and cost of revenusueh sales until the distributors sell the
product to the end customer. Our products typicadiyy a one-year replacement warranty. Replacesiee been insignificant to date. Our
revenues are subject to variation from period tdopedue to the volume of shipments made withireaqa and the prices we charge for our
products. The vast majority of our revenues wegptiated at prices that reflect a discount fromlisteprices for our products. These discot
are made for a variety of reasons, including: Jgdtablish a relationship with a new customer,s2yrmincentive for customers to purchase
products in larger volumes, 3) to provide profitrgia to our distributors who resell our productidin response to competition. In additior
a product matures, we expect that the averagagedtice for such product will decline due to thieajer availability of competing products.
Our ability to increase revenues in the futuregpehdent on increased demand for our establislwelligis and our ability to ship larger
volumes of those products in response to such denaanwell as our ability to develop or acquire mpraducts and subsequently achieve
customer acceptance of newly introduced products.

Cost of revenues. Cost of revenues includes the cost of purclgaiiished silicon wafers processed by indepenfmmdries; costs
associated with assembly, test and shipping oftiposducts; costs of personnel and equipment agsdoivith manufacturing support, logist
and quality assurance; costs of software royadtiesamortization of purchased software, otherlgdalal property license costs, and certain
acquired intangible assets; an allocated portioouofoccupancy costs; allocable depreciation dintg®quipment and leasehold improveme
and impairment charges related to certain manufiactequipment held for sale or abandoned. Genenalt depreciate equipment over four
years on a straig-line basis and leasehold improvements over thetehof the estimated useful life or the applicdblse term. Recently
introduced products tend to have higher cost aémeres per unit due to initially low production vales required by our customers and higher
costs associated with new package variations. édymtion volumes for a product increase, unit pobdidn costs tend to decrease as our yields
improve and our semiconductor fabricators, asserslalled test suppliers achieve greater economissabé for that product. Additionally, the
cost of wafer procurement and assembly and tegicest which are significant components of coggadds sold, vary cyclically with overall
demand for semiconductors and our suppliers' ehaileapacity of such products and services.
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Research and developmer Research and development expense consistsrpyimiapersonnel-related expenses, including stock
compensation, new product mask, wafer, packagidgest costs, external consulting and servicesgcastortization of purchased software,
equipment tooling, equipment depreciation, amatittreof acquired intangible assets, acquired reteand development resulting from
acquisitions, as well as an allocated portion afancupancy costs for such operations. We genedallyeciate our research and development
equipment over four years and amortize our purchaséware from computer-aided design tool vendees the shorter of the estimated
useful life or the license term. Research and ageént activities include the design of new prodietd software, refinement of existing
products and design of test methodologies to ermurgliance with required specifications.

Selling, general and administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenseisteprimarily of personnel-related expenses,
including stock compensation, related allocabldiporof our occupancy costs, sales commissionsdegendent sales representatives,
applications engineering support, professional,fdeectors' and officers' liability insurance, gatt litigation legal fees, costs related to
relocating our headquarters and promotional andketialg expenses.

In-process research and development. In-process research and development repreaeqgtéred technology resulting from business
combinations that has not achieved technologiaaifglity and has no alternative future use. Thassts are expensed on the date of
acquisition.

Interest income. Interest income reflects interest earned oncash, cash equivalents and investment balances.
Interest expense. Interest expense consists of interest on oot simd long-term obligations.

Other income (expense), net. Other income (expense), net reflects foreigmenicy remeasurement adjustments and gains on the
disposal of fixed assets.

Provision for Income Taxes. We accrue a provision for domestic and foréigirome tax at the applicable statutory rates aejufdr
non-deductible expenses (including stock compemsgtiesearch and development tax credits andeisiténcome from tax-exempt short-term
investments. We recognize interest and penaltlageeto unrecognized tax benefits in the provig@mrincome tax.

39




The following table sets forth our consatied statements of income data as a percentageeariues for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 29 December 30 December 31
2007 2006 2005

Revenue! 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of revenue 38.¢ 34.€ 33.t
Gross profi 61.4 65.1 66.5
Operating expense

Research and developmt 26.t 31.2 32.C

Selling, general and administrati 28.1 30.¢ 26.t

In-process research and developn — 0.¢ —
Operating expenst 54.¢ 63.C 58.t
Operating incom 6.8 2.1 8.C
Other income (expense

Interest incomt 7.3 4.7 3.4

Interest expens (0.2 0.3 (0.7)

Other income (expense), r (0.2) 0.2 (0.2)
Income from continuing operations before income=& 13.€ 6.8 11.2
Provision for income taxe 2.C 1kt 3.7
Income from continuing operatiol 11.¢ 5.3 7.5
Income from discontinued operations, net of incdaxes 48.¢ 5.2 12.4
Net income 60.7% 10.€% 19.€%

Comparison of Fiscal 2007 to Fiscal 2006

Revenues
Year Ended
December 29, December 30, %
2007 2006 Change Change
(in millions)
Revenue:! $ 337t $ 288.2 $ 49.2 17.1%

The growth in the sales of our productfisoal 2007 was primarily driven by increased raxenfrom our broadcast and microcontroller
products. Such growth was offset in part by a declh revenues from our VolP products. Unit volurakeur products increased compared to
fiscal 2006 by 36.6%. Average selling prices desedaduring the same period by 14.6%. As our pradoetome more mature, we expect to
experience decreases in average selling pricesantepate that newly announced higher priced, gexteration products and product
extensions will offset these decreases to somesdegr
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Gross profit

Year Ended
December 29 December 30
2007 2006 Change % Change
(in millions)
Gross profil $ 207.2 $ 187t $ 19.7 10.5%
Percent of revenu 61.2% 65.1%

The decrease in gross profit as a perder@venue in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to chesin product mix.

We may experience declines in the averatieg prices of certain of our products. This devand pressure on gross profit as a percer
of revenues may be offset to the extent we aretabl) introduce higher margin new products anid gaarket share with our ICs; or
2) achieve lower production costs from our wafgpdiers and third-party assembly and test subcoturs.

Research and development

Year Ended
December 29, December 30,
2007 2006 Change % Change
(in millions)
Research and developm $ 89.c $ 89.6 $ (0.5 (0.5%
Percent of revenu 26.5% 31.2%

The decrease in research and developmeense in fiscal 2007 was principally due to (a& $nillion reduction in occupancy and IT
support costs allocated to research and developmeato our transition services agreement (TSAR WXP (which has now expired),
(b) decreased depreciation of $1.6 million, andd@)reased product introduction costs of $1.5 omilliThis decrease was offset in part by
$5.1 million of increased stock compensation ameiopersonnel-related expenses.

Significant recent development projectsude a dual-function, single-port Power over Etle¢iPoE) controller with an integrated dc-dc
controller for power sourcing equipment, fully-igtated AM/FM radio receivers with short-wave andgevave band coverage, a family of
single-chip AC current sensors, a dual ProSLICMolP equipment, families of jitter-attenuating arate clock multipliers and oscillators,
single-chip FM radio transceivers and we furthgraded our small form factor family of microcontess. We expect that research and
development expense will increase with revenuédsgohute dollars and may fluctuate as a percenthgevenues due to changes in sales and
the timing of certain expensive items related tav peoduct development initiatives, such as engingemask and wafer costs.

Selling, general and administrative

Year Ended
December 29, December 30,
2007 2006 Change % Change
(in millions)
Selling, general and administrati $ 94.¢ $ 89.C $ 5.8 6.5%
Percent of revenu 28.1% 30.9%
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The increase in selling, general and adstraive expense in fiscal 2007 was principally tuéa) $5.6 million for stock compensation
other personnel-related expenses, (b) $2.4 miiidagal fees primarily related to litigation, ae) $1.9 million for depreciation. The increase
was offset in part by decreases of (a) $2.2 milfancharges related to relocating our corporatdhearters, (b) $1.5 million for sales
commissions, and (c) $1.0 million due to reduceclipancy costs, in connection with our TSA with NX®e expect that selling, general and
administrative expense will increase slightly irsaloite dollars in future periods.

In-process research and development

In-process research and development (IPR&R@Yed to the acquisition of Silembia was $2.8iom in fiscal 2006. There was no IPR&D
in fiscal 2007.

Interest income

Year Ended
December 29 December 30
2007 2006 Change
(in millions)
Interest incom: $ 24t $ 137 ¢ 10

The increase in interest income in fis€@2was primarily due to greater cash and shont-tavestments balances, and to a lesser extent
an increase in interest rates of the underlyintrunsents.

Interest expense
Interest expense in fiscal 2007 was $0l6anicompared to $0.9 million in fiscal 2006.
Other income (expense), net
Other income (expense), net in fiscal 28@% $(0.5) million compared to $0.7 million in #8&Q007.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
December 29, December 30,
2007 2006 Change
(in millions)
Provision for income taxe $ 6.8 $ 43 $ 2.5
Effective tax rate 14.1% 22.(%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2007 vi@aser than fiscal 2006 due to an increase in thie @f tax deductible stock compensation
expense as a percentage of income from continypegations before income taxes as well as the rexfuof the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits (and associated interest) due to the @asfuopen tax years. These decreases were padfédet by a decrease in research and
development tax credits as well as a decreaseifatlorable impact of tax exempt interest incomgsical 2007.

The effective tax rates for each of thequks presented differ from the federal statutote & 35% due to the amount of income earned in
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedothan the federal statutory rate, tax exemptastancome, the limited deductibility of sto
compensation expense, research and developmeereidixs and other permanent items. In additionfimal 2007, the effective tax rate diffe
from the federal statutory rate of 35% as a resutlhe reduction of the liability for unrecogniztak benefits (and associated interest) due to the
closure of open tax years.
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Income from discontinued operations, net of incom&axes

Year Ended
December 29 December 30
2007 2006 Change
(in millions)
Income from discontinued operations, net of incc
taxes $ 165.1 $ 15¢& $ 149.c

Revenues from our discontinued operatiarfsstal 2007 were $46.3 million, as compared t@64 million in fiscal 2006. Income from
our discontinued operations in fiscal 2007 includeghin on the sale of our Aero product lines &#462 million and a provision for income
taxes of $62.2 million. We do not expect to recagrany additional revenue from our discontinuedajens. See Note 3, "Discontinued
Operation," to the Consolidated Financial Statesémnt additional information.

Comparison of Fiscal 2006 to Fiscal 2005

Revenues
Year Ended
December 30 December 31
2006 2005 Change % Change
(in millions)
Revenue:! $ 288.2 $ 2386 $ 49.€ 20.8%

The growth in the sales of our productfisoal 2006 was primarily driven by increased ravenfrom our broadcast, VolP and
microcontroller products. Such growth was offsepamt by a decline in revenues from our mature pctal Unit volumes of our products
increased compared to fiscal 2006 by 17.5%. Avesafjing prices increased during the same period. BYo.

Gross profit

Year Ended
December 30, December 31,
2006 2005 Change % Change
(in millions)
Gross profil $ 187t $ 158 $ 28.¢ 18.2%
Percent of revenu 65.1% 66.5%

The decrease in gross profit as a perder@venue in fiscal 2006 was primarily due to chesin product mix.

Research and development

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
2006 2005 Change % Change
(in millions)
Research and developm $ 89.6 $ 76.4 $ 13.4 17.€%
Percent of revenu 31.2% 32.(%

The increase in research and developmearese in fiscal 2006 was principally due to incesasf: (1) $10.0 million for stock
compensation expense resulting from our adoptidBF#HS 123R and the issuance of restricted stockdsyé?) $11.9 million for other
personnel-related expenses; and (3) $3.0 milliorfmipment depreciation, offset by a $13.7 millatvarge for acquired research and
development costs related to the acquisition a€&il MAGIKE in fiscal 2005.
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Selling, general and administrative

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
2006 2005 Change % Change
(in millions)
Selling, general and administrati $ 89.C $ 63.2 $ 25.7 40.€%
Percent of revenu 30.9% 26.5%

The increase in selling, general and adstriaive expense in fiscal 2006 was principally tuancreases of: (1) $12.8 million for stock
compensation expense; (2) $5.1 million for othespenel-related expenses; and (3) $3.0 millionteel®o relocating our corporate
headquarters.

In-process research and development

In-process research and development (IPR&&Y $2.6 million in fiscal 2006. The IPR&D wasatd to our acquisition of Silembia.
There was no IPR&D in fiscal 2005.

Interest income

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
2006 2005 Change
(in millions)
Interest incom: $ 137 $ 82 $ 5.4

The increase in interest income in fis€@&was due to a greater amount of cash and shontiivestments balances and an increase in
the interest rates of the underlying instrumentsnduthe period.

Interest expense
Interest expense in fiscal 2006 was $0/8anicompared to $0.3 million in fiscal 2005.
Other income (expense), net
Other income (expense), net in fiscal 26@6 $0.7 million compared to $(0.3) million in #8&Q005.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
December 30, December 31,
2006 2005 Change
(in millions)
Provision for income taxe $ 43 $ 88 % (4.€)
Effective tax rate 22.(% 33.2%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 @awser than the effective tax rate for fiscal 20 do an increase in the favorable impact of tax
exempt interest income, a decrease in the non-tiethuwrite off of acquired and in process reseant development costs, an increase in the
foreign tax benefit and an increase in researchdavelopment tax credits. These decreases welialpaotfset by the recording of stock
compensation expense at a lower than average igff¢ak rate.
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The effective tax rates for each of thaquky presented differ from the federal statutote Gf 35% due to tax-exempt interest income, the
amount of income earned in foreign jurisdictionsewehthe tax rate may be lower than the federaltstiat rate, research and development tax
credits, non-deductible write offs of acquired amgrocess research and development costs, staim@taxes and other permanent items. The
effective rate for fiscal 2006 also differs fronetfederal statutory rate of 35% due to the limdeductibility of stock compensation expense.

Income from discontinued operations, net of incom&axes

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
2006 2005 Change
(in millions)
Income from discontinued operations, net of incdaxes $ 15¢& $ 29t $ (14.0

Revenues from our discontinued operationdiscal 2006 were $176.4 million, as compare®187.1 million for fiscal 2005. See Note 3,
"Discontinued Operation," to the Consolidated FgiahStatements for additional information.

Business Outlook

We expect revenues in the first quarteiszial 2008 to be in the range of $93 to $97 milliburthermore, we expect our diluted net
income per share to be in the range of $0.17 tH9%50.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity as ofd@enber 29, 2007 consisted of $573.0 million in ¢casish equivalents and short-term
investments. Our short-term investments consisagmily of auction-rate securities and variable-idgenand notes.

Net cash provided by operating activitiesv$44.0 million during fiscal 2007, compared tbcash provided of $56.3 million during fis
2006. Operating cash flows during fiscal 2007 efteur net income of $204.8 million, adjustment$b08.1 million for income from
discontinued operations, depreciation, amortizatitgierred income taxes and stock compensationaarad cash outflow of $52.7 million due
to changes in our operating assets and liabilities.

Accounts receivable increased to $51.Zionilat December 29, 2007 from $36.7 million at Deber 30, 2006. The increase in accounts
receivable resulted primarily due to an increaseuenues during the three months ended Decemb@0R9 over the three months ended
December 30, 2006. Our average days sales outsta(idS0) increased to 46 days at December 29, #06744 days at December 30, 2006.

Inventory increased to $28.6 million at Bexber 29, 2007 from $22.0 million at December W& Our inventory level is primarily
impacted by our need to make purchase commitmersisgport forecasted demand and variations betfagecasted and actual demand. Our
average days of inventory (DOI) was 70 days at Dy 29, 2007 and 68 days at December 30, 2006.

Also contributing to the use of cash inmpieg activities during fiscal 2007 was $45.0 roiil of estimated tax payments due primarily to
the gain on the sale of our Aero product lines.

Net cash provided by investing activitiessw$256.9 million during fiscal 2007, compared ¢b cash used of $94.6 million during fiscal
2006. The increase was principally due to cashgads of $270.7 million from the sale of our Aerodurct lines (which excludes $14.3 milli
held in escrow), an increase of $64.4 million in maturities of short-term investments and a dessredi $16.9 million used for purchases of
property, equipment and software.
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We anticipate capital expenditures of appnately $10 to $15 million for fiscal 2008. Additially, as part of our growth strategy, we
expect to evaluate opportunities to invest in a@uéie other businesses, intellectual property dntelogies that would complement or expand
our current offerings, expand the breadth of ourketa or enhance our technical capabilities.

Net cash used in financing activities wa4Ck0 million during fiscal 2007, compared to nastc used of $12.5 million during fiscal 2006.
The decrease was principally due to an increa$4@7.3 million for repurchases of our common stacH a decrease of $11.4 million of
proceeds from the exercise of employee stock optionJuly 2007, our Board of Directors authorizagorogram to repurchase up to
$400 million of our common stock over a 24-monthiqe:

Net cash provided by discontinued operatioas $35.4 million during fiscal 2007, comparedéd cash provided of $18.4 million during
fiscal 2006. The increase was principally due tinanease of $20.3 million of proceeds from thereise of employee stock options from
employees who were hired by NXP in connection whthsale of the Aero product lines.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contwatobligations as of December 29, 2007 (in thodsgn

Payments due by period

Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
Operating lease obligations( $ 19,40: $ 521¢ $ 497t $ 328 $ 2531 $ 2518 $ 87(
Purchase obligations(: 23,71t 23,59% 11¢€ — — — —
Other lon-term obligations(3 6,71¢ — 5,82¢ 894 — — —

(D) Operating lease obligations include amounts fosdddacilities.

2) Purchase obligations include contractual arrang¢sriarthe form of purchase orders with supplieremelthere is a fixed n-
cancelable payment schedule or minimum paymentsvithea reduced delivery schedule.

3) We are unable to make a reasonably reliable estiamto when cash settlement with taxing autheritiay occur for our unrecognized
tax benefits. Therefore, our liability for unrecdamgd tax benefits is not included in the table ab®ee Note 13, "Income Taxes," to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfdrimation.

Our future capital requirements will depemdmany factors, including the rate of sales ghpwiarket acceptance of our products, the
timing and extent of research and development pigj@otential acquisitions of companies or tecbgials and the expansion of our sales and
marketing activities. We believe our existing casld short-term investment balances are sufficenteet our capital requirements through at
least the next 12 months, although we could beireduor could elect, to seek additional fundingpto that time. We may enter into
acquisitions or strategic arrangements in the &utunich also could require us to seek additionaltgar debt financing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In March 2006, we enterédo an operating lease agreement and a relatéidipation agreement (collectively, the "lease') &ofacility in
Austin, Texas for our corporate headquarters. €asd has a term of seven years. The base rehefterm of the lease is an amount equal to
the interest accruing on $44.3 million at 110 basisits over the three-month LIBOR (which wouldapproximately $13.8 million over the
remaining term assuming LIBOR averages 4.83% dwsiurad term).
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We have granted certain rights and remddiéise lessor in the event of certain defaultsluiding the right to terminate the lease, to bring
suit to collect damages, and to compel us to pweltze facility. The lease contains other customgpyesentations, warranties, obligations,
conditions, indemnification provisions and termioatprovisions, including covenants that we shaimmain unencumbered cash and highly-
rated short-term investments of at least $75 nmildod a ratio of funded debt to earnings beforerést expense, income taxes, depreciation,
amortization, lease expense and other non-casigeh@EBITDAR) over the four prior fiscal quartefsno greater than 1.5 to 1. As of
December 29, 2007, we believe we were in compliavitteall covenants of the lease.

During the term of the lease, we have aigaing option to purchase the building for a taafchase price of approximately $44.3 million.
Alternatively, we can cause the property to be solthird parties provided we are not in defauldeinthe lease. We are contingently liable for
the guaranteed residual value associated witlptiigerty in the event that the net sale proceegleas than the original financed cost of the
facility up to approximately $35.3 million. To tletent that the net proceeds generated from tleeo$ahe facility to a third party exceed
$9.0 million, we would have the right to receivé gabstantially all of such excess proceeds ifstile occurs prior to the end of the term or
(b) up to approximately $35.3 million of such exxesoceeds if the sale occurs after the end ofietime.

In accordance with FASB Interpretation M6, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requamts for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others," we detednira the fair value associated with the guarahtesidual value was $1.0 million. The
amount was recorded in "Other assets, net" andditerm obligations and other liabilities" in thensolidated balance sheets and is being
amortized over the term of the lease.

We are required to periodically evaluaie éixpected fair value of the facility at the endhef lease term. If we determine that it is
estimable and probable that the expected fair vailide less than $44.3 million, we will ratablg@ue the loss up to a maximum of
approximately $35.3 million over the remaining keésrm. As of December 29, 2007, we have deterntimetch loss contingency accrual is not
required.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements acmbmpanying notes in conformity with U.S. gerigratcepted accounting principles requires
that we make estimates and assumptions that affee@mounts reported. Changes in facts and cireaumoss could have a significant impact on
the resulting estimated amounts included in tharfaial statements. We believe the following critmecounting policies affect our more
complex judgments and estimates. We also have ptiiegies that we consider to be key accountingcpes, such as our policies for revenue
recognition, including the deferral of revenues aast of revenues on sales to distributors; howehese policies do not meet the definition of
critical accounting estimates because they do eoérglly require us to make estimates or judgmihatsare difficult or subjective.
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Inventory valuation—We assess the recoverability of inventories thiotig application of a set of methods, assumptankestimates.
In determining net realizable value, we write dawentory that may be slow moving or have some fofrabsolescence, including inventory
that has aged more than nine or twelve months,rdipg on the product. We also adjust the valuatibinventory when its standard cost
exceeds the estimated market value. We assesstémtipl for any unusual customer returns basekhomn quality or business issues and
establish reserves based on the estimated invelossgs for scrap or non-saleable material. Invgmiot otherwise identified to be written
down is compared to an assessment of our 12-montkdsted demand. The result of this methodologgrispared against the product life
cycle and competitive situations in the marketplacdetermine the appropriateness of the resuitingntory levels. Demand for our products
may fluctuate significantly over time, and actuatrthnd and market conditions may be more or lesgdaale than those that we project. In the
event that actual demand is lower or market coomstiare worse than originally projected, additianaéntory write-downs may be required.

Stock compensatior-Prior to fiscal 2006, we accounted for stock-baseuipensation plans under the recognition and nneamsnt
provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) @ipin No. 25. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopiedorovisions of SFAS 123R using
the modified-prospective-transition method. SFASR 2equires companies to recognize the fair-vafistark-based compensation
transactions in the statement of income. The faluer of our stock-based awards is estimated atdteeof grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The Black-Scholes valuation caldolatrequires us to estimate key assumptions sufilta® stock price volatility, expected
terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expedctiedtk price volatility is based on implied volailfrom traded options on our stock in the
marketplace and historical volatility of our stodthe expected term of options granted is derivethfan analysis of historical exercises and
remaining contractual life of stock options, andresents the period of time that options granteceapected to be outstanding. The risk-free
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvdfeceat the time of grant. We have never paid aigldends, and do not currently intend to
pay cash dividends, and thus have assumed a O%ediviyield. In addition, we are required to esterthe expected forfeiture rate of our stock
grants and only recognize the expense for thoseslexpected to vest. If our actual experiencedifsignificantly from the assumptions used
to compute our stock-based compensation cost,différent assumptions had been used, we may feeded too much or too little stock-
based compensation cost. See Note 10, "StockhokEguity and Stock-Based Compensation," to the Glateted Financial Statements for a
further discussion on stock-based compensation.

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assetiVe review long-lived assets which are held andipgeluding fixed assets and
purchased intangible assets, for impairment whanehanges in circumstances indicate that the gagrgimount of the assets may not be
recoverable. Such evaluations compare the cargmmgunt of an asset to future undiscounted net ftasis expected to be generated by the
asset over its expected useful life and are sicanifily impacted by estimates of future prices amldmes for our products, capital needs,
economic trends and other factors which are inhHbréifficult to forecast. If the asset is considdrto be impaired, we record an impairment
charge equal to the amount by which the carryirigesaf the asset exceeds its fair value determiyegither a quoted market price, if any, or a
value determined by utilizing a discounted cashvftechnique. Occasionally, we may hold certain asfe sale. In those cases, the assets are
reclassified on our balance sheet from long-tereutoent, and the carrying value of such assetseaiewed and adjusted each period
thereafter to the fair value less expected cosetio
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We test our goodwill for impairment annyak of the first day of our fourth fiscal quarderd in interim periods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying value of goodwill mlag impaired. The goodwill impairment test is a tstep process. The first step of the
impairment analysis compares our fair value tormtrbook value. In determining fair value, the agtong guidance allows for the use of
several valuation methodologies, although it stgtested market prices are the best evidence of&dire. If the fair value is less than the net
book value, the second step of the analysis cormpghesimplied fair value of our goodwill to its cging amount. If the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, we recagnan impairment loss equal to that excess amount.

Income taxes—We are required to estimate income taxes in eathegurisdictions in which we operate. This pracgsolves estimatin
the actual current tax liability together with assiag temporary differences in recognition of ineofioss) for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assetdialnitities, which are included in our consoliddtiealance sheet. We then assess the likelihooc
that the deferred tax assets will be recovered fiidore taxable income and, to the extent we beligat recovery is not likely, we establish a
valuation allowance against the deferred tax afsgther, we operate within multiple taxing juristiibns and are subject to audit in these
jurisdictions. These audits can involve complexiégsswhich may require an extended period of timresolve and could result in additior
assessments of income tax. We believe adequatesjanos for income taxes have been made for albgsri

We adopted FASB Financial Interpretation ffdN) 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in IncomeXes," at the beginning of fiscal 2007.
As a result of the adoption of FIN 48, we recogtiakilities for uncertain tax positions based be two-step process prescribed by the
interpretation. The first step requires us to daiee if the weight of available evidence indicattest the tax position has met the threshold for
recognition; therefore, we must evaluate whethisriitore likely than not that the position will bestained on audit, including resolution of
related appeals or litigation processes. The sest@pdrequires us to measure the tax benefit aftheosition taken, or expected to be take
an income tax return as the largest amount thabi® than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimaéttlement. This measurement step is
inherently difficult and requires subjective esttinas of such amounts to determine the probahilityarious possible outcomes. We reeval
the uncertain tax positions each quarter baseaaors including, but not limited to, changes iat$aor circumstances, changes in tax law,
effectively settled issues under audit, and newtaadivity. Such a change in recognition or measugnt would result in the recognition of a
tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax fgiown in the period.

Although we believe the measurement ofliailities for uncertain tax positions is reasoleqlmo assurance can be given that the final
outcome of these matters will not be different thdrat is reflected in the historical income taxysmns and accruals. If additional taxes are
assessed as a result of an audit or litigatiozguld have a material effect on our income tax jsiown and net income in the period or periods
for which that determination is made.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS(ieMised 2007), "Business Combinations”, (SFAS J48RAS 141R establishes principles
and requirements for how an acquirer recognizesagasures in its financial statements the idebléiassets acquired, including goodwill,
liabilities assumed and any non-controlling intefaeghe acquiree. The Statement also establisise®dure requirements to enable users of the
financial statements to evaluate the nature arahéial effects of the business combination. SFABRLK effective for business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after tlegibning of the first annual reporting period begng on or after December 15, 2008. The
impact of adopting SFAS 141R will be dependentrenfuture business combinations that we may puafieeits effective date.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS "Fgir Value Measurements"”. SFAS 157 definesvalue, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in generally accepted accagmrinciples (GAAP) and expands disclosures ablmutvalue measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Novemr 2007 and interim periods within those fiscgdigs. In December 2007, the FASB rele
a proposed FASB Staff Position (FSP FAS 157-b—HffedDate of FASB Statement No. 157) which, if atdapas proposed, would delay the
effective date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancialetssand nonfinancial liabilities, except those & recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basise@tlannually). Based on our current operationgjaveot expect that the adoption of SFAS
will have a material impact on our financial pasitior results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 15Be Fair Value Option for Financial Assets anddficial Liabilities—Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115". SFAS 159mgthe use of fair value accounting to many fiferiostruments and certain other
items. The fair value option is irrevocable andeyafly made on an instrument-by-instrument basisnef a company has similar instruments
that it elects not to measure based on fair v&8&AS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginninggeNovember 15, 2007. Based on our current
operations, we do not expect that the adoptionF#{$159 will have a material impact on our finahgiasition or results of operations.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

Our financial instruments include cashhcaguivalents and shotgérm investments. Our main investment objectivestiae preservation
investment capital and the maximization of after+teturns on our investment portfolio. Our interesibbme is sensitive to changes in the
general level of U.S. interest rates. Based orcash, cash equivalents and short-term investmendinigs as of December 29, 2007 and
December 30, 2006, an immediate 100 basis poitingeia the yield for such instruments would deseeaur annual interest income by
approximately $5.7 million and $3.9 million, respreely. We believe that our investment policy iseervative, both in the duration of our
investments and the credit quality of the investimeve hold.

In March 2006, we entered into an operaliage agreement for a facility in Austin, Texasdor corporate headquarters. The lease has a
term of seven years. The base rent for the tertheofease is an amount equal to the interest aagan $44.3 million at 110 basis points over
the three-month LIBOR. LIBOR is sensitive to chamgethe general level of U.S. interest rates. hmediate 100 basis point increase in the
three-month LIBOR would increase our annual baséelyg approximately $0.4 million.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The Financial Statements and supplemelaty required by this item are included in Partltéin 15 of this Form 16 and are present:
beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under tiperwision and with the participation of our managet, including our Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), thie effectiveness of our disclosure controls amd@dures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Brgle Act). Based on that evaluation, our managerireriiding our CEO and CFO,
concluded that our disclosure controls and procesiwere effective as of December 29, 2007 to peokedsonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports filedubmitted by us under the Exchange Act is b processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sudad forms. There was no change in our internarats during the fiscal quarter ended
December 29, 2007 that materially affected, oe&spnably likely to materially affect, our intericahtrols over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlisand maintaining adequate internal control diemncial reporting. Our internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assu@oce management and Board of Directors regarttiagpreparation and fair presentation
of published financial statements.

Our management assessed the effectivehess imternal control over financial reporting @sDecember 29, 2007. In making this
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by thar@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (COSO) imternal
Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment we believe that, ascefinileer 29, 2007, our internal control over finahcia
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Our independent registered public accogrfitm, Ernst & Young LLP, issued an attestatiopa® on our internal control over financial
reporting. This report appears on page F-1.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Part Ill

Certain information required by Part Illamitted from this report because we intend todil@efinitive Proxy Statement pursuant to
Regulation 14A (the "Proxy Statement") no latemth20 days after the end of the fiscal year covesethis report, and certain information to
be included therein is incorporated herein by exfee.
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Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance

Set forth below is information regarding tixecutive officers and directors of Silicon Ledtories as of January 31, 2007.

Name Age Position
Navdeep S. Sooc 45  Chairman of the Boar

Necip Sayine 42  Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
William G. Bock 57 Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid
Kurt W. Hoff 50 Vice President of Worldwide Sal

Jonathan D. Ivestt 52  Vice President of Worldwide Operatio

Paul V. Walsh, Jr. 43  Chief Accounting Officer and Vice President of Hica
David R. Wellanc 52 Vice President and Direct

Harvey B. Casl 69  Director

Nelson C. Chal 46 Director

R. Ted Enloe llI 69 Director

Kristen M. Onker 58 Director

Laurence G. Walke 59 Director

William P. Wood 52 Director

Navdeep S. Sooch co-founded Silicon Lalooies in August 1996 and has served as Chairm#mredBoard since our inception.
Mr. Sooch served as our Chief Executive Officenfrour inception through the end of fiscal 2003 aan/ed as interim Chief Executive
Officer from April 2005 to September 2005. From krad 985 until founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr.dg8t held various positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Vice Presitief Engineering, as well as Product
Planning Manager of Strategic Marketing and De&ggineer. From May 1982 to March 1985, Mr. Soock w@esign Engineer with AT&T
Bell Labs. Mr. Sooch holds a B.S. in Electrical Ergring from the University of Michigan, Dearband a M.S. in Electrical Engineering
from Stanford University.

Necip Sayiner has served as director, 8eesiand Chief Executive Officer since Septemb@®52@rior to joining Silicon Laboratories,
Mr. Sayiner held various leadership positions aggSystems Inc. From August 2004 to September,20055ayiner served as Vice Presic
and General Manager of Agere's Enterprise and N&tag Division and from March 2002 to August 2002 $erved as Vice President and
General Manager of Agere's Networking IC DivisiMr. Sayiner holds a B.S. in electrical engineermgl physics from Bosphorus University
in Turkey, a M.S. in Electrical Engineering fromusloern lllinois University, and a Ph.D. in Electi&Engineering from the University of
Pennsylvania.

William G. Bock has served as Senior Vicesilent of Finance and Administration and Chiefaficial Officer since November 2006.

Mr. Bock joined Silicon Laboratories as a diredtoMarch 2000, and served as Chairman of the aoditmittee until November 2006 when
stepped down from the Board of Directors to asshimeurrent role. From April 2001 to November 2008, Bock participated in the venture
capital industry, principally as a partner with @R oint Ventures. From February 1997 to March 200l Bock led DAZEL Corporation, a
provider of electronic information delivery systeristially as its President and Chief Executivei€@dr and subsequent to its acquisition by
HewlettPackard in June 1999 as a HP Vice President andr&@dvianager. Prior to 1997, Mr. Bock served ase€fiperating Officer of Tivo
Systems, a client server software company acqiyd@M in March 1996, in senior sales and finanaoenagement positions with Convex
Computer Corporation and began his career with §éxstruments. Mr. Bock holds a B.S. in Computeee from lowa State University a
a M.S. in Industrial Administration from CarnegiesNbn University.
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Kurt W. Hoff has served as Vice Presiddntorldwide Sales since July 2007. Mr. Hoff join8dicon Laboratories in 2005 to manage
company's European sales and operations. Prioirtm@) Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Hoff served assident, chief executive officer and direc
of Cognio, a spectrum management company. Mr. Blsti managed the operations and sales of C-Popb@iion, a network processor
company acquired by Motorola in May 2000. AddititywaMr. Hoff spent 10 years in various positiortsfdD, including vice president of
sales. Mr. Hoff holds a master's M.B.A. from theiwgmsity of Chicago and a B.S. degree in Physiomfthe University of lllinois.

Jonathan D. Ivester joined Silicon Laboria®in September 1997 as Vice President and masdsas Vice President of Worldwide
Operations since May 2005. From May 1984 to SepgeriB97, Mr. Ivester was with Applied Materialssugpplier of equipment and services
to the semiconductor industry, and served as QirexftManufacturing and Director of U.S. Procuremi@raddition to various engineering and
manufacturing management positions. Mr. lvester avasientist at Bechtel Corporation, an engineegimg) construction company, from 1980
to 1982 and at Abcor, Inc., an ultrafiltration camny and subsidiary of Koch Industries, from 1978%80. Mr. Ivester holds a B.S. in
Chemistry from the Massachusetts Institute of Tetdgy and a M.B.A. from Stanford University.

Paul V. Walsh Jr. joined Silicon Laboragsrin January 2004 as Director of Finance, Worlévwigerations, and appointed Corporate
Controller in May 2005. Most recently, Mr. Walsimaed as Interim CFO from May 2006 to November 2B8fbre being promoted to Vice
President and Chief Accounting Officer in NovemB@06. Prior to joining Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Wtawas Site Controller from February
2003 to January 2004 with PerkinElmer, a supptighe health sciences and photonics markets, Maturfag Controller from 2000 to 2003 at
Teradyne, a semiconductor equipment supplier, anidws operational and finance roles from 19920@02at Analog Devices, a
semiconductor manufacturer. Mr. Walsh also sermegitechnical capacity from 1987 to 1990 at R.Ghdéaweil Engineers. Mr. Walsh
received his B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from thiversity of Maine, and a M.B.A from Boston Ueisity.

David R. Welland co-founded Silicon Laborégs in August 1996, has served as a Vice Presatehdirector since our inception and was
appointed Fellow in March 2004. From November 106fil founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Wellandltie/arious positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Senior Deskngineer. Mr. Welland holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts timstiof Technology.

Harvey B. Cash has served as a direct8ilion Laboratories since June 1997. Mr. Cashseaged as general partner of InterWest
Partners, a venture capital firm, since 1986. MrsiCcurrently serves on the Board of Directorieffollowing public companies: i2
Technologies, a provider of intelligent e-businasd marketplace solutions; Ciena Corporation, &des and manufacturer of dense
wavelength division multiplexing systems for fitmgtic networks; Argo Group International Holdingi¢d., a specialty insurance company;
First Acceptance Corp, a provider of low-cost dnturance; and Staktek, Inc., a semiconductor dslgecompany. Mr. Cash holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from Texas A&M Universitycaa M.B.A. from Western Michigan University.

Nelson C. Chan was recently appointed disegtor of Silicon Laboratories in September 20@¥. Chan is currently president and chief
executive officer of Magellan, a leading maker ¢f$devices for consumer and professional applicatide also serves on the board of
directors of Synaptics Incorporated, a provideussr interface solutions for mobile electronic &optes. From 1992 through 2006, Mr. Chan
served in various senior management positions S&athDisk Corporation, including most recently asdetiwe Vice President and General
Manager of the Consumer Business. From 1983 to,1d82Chan held various marketing and engineeriogjtipns at Chips and Technologies,
Signetics, and Delco Electronics. Mr. Chan hol@s%. in Electrical and Computer Engineering from tniversity of California at Santa
Barbara, and a M.B.A. from Santa Clara University.
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R. Ted Enloe Il has served as a direcf@®ilicon Laboratories since April 2003. Mr. Enlecurrently the Managing General Partner of
Balquita Partners, Ltd., a family investment fifareviously, Mr. Enloe served as President and (Ewxeftutive Officer of Optisoft, Inc., a
provider of intelligent traffic signal platforms.MMEnloe formerly served as Vice Chairman and merobéhe office of chief executive of
Compaqg Computer Corporation. He also served asderéof Lomas Financial Corporation and Libertedstors for more than 15 years.

Mr. Enloe co-founded a number of other publiclychiéims, including Capstead Mortgage Corp., TylabGt Mortgage Securities Corp., and
Seaman's Corp. Mr. Enloe currently serves on therdof Directors of Leggett & Platt, Inc. and LiMation, Inc. Mr. Enloe holds a B.S. in
Engineering from Louisiana Polytechnic Universihda J.D. from Southern Methodist University.

Kristen M. Onken was recently appointe@ akrector of Silicon Laboratories in September20ds. Onken recently retired from
Logitech International, a multi-billion dollar makef electronics peripherals, where she servedea®o§Vice President, Finance, and Chief
Financial Officer from February 1999 to May 20060/ September 1996 to February 1999, Ms. Onkeredeas Vice President of Finance at
Fujitsu PC Corporation, the U.S. subsidiary of iapanese electronics manufacturer. From 1991 te®@bpr 1996, Ms. Onken was employed
by Sun Microsystems initially as Controller of tBeuthwest Area, and later as Director of Finance, Brofessional Services. Ms. Onken hi
a B.S. from Southern lllinois University, and a MABin Finance from the University of Chicago.

Laurence G. Walker has served as a dir@ft8ilicon Laboratories since June 2003. Previgudlr. Walker co-founded and served as
Chief Executive Officer of QRort Corporation, a pioneer in the network processtustry, which was acquired by Motorola in 20B806llowing
the acquisition, Mr. Walker served as Vice PresiaddrStrategy for Motorola's Network and ComputBgstems Group and then as Vice
President and General Manager of the Network amdptiting Systems Group until 2002. From August 1@9Blay 1997, Mr. Walker served
as Chief Executive Officer of CertCo, a digitaltdfération supplier. Mr. Walker served as Vice Rdest and General Manager, Network
Products Business Unit, of Digital Equipment Cogtimn, a computer hardware company, from Janua®y 1® July 1996. From 1981 to 19¢
he held a variety of other management positiofi3igital Equipment Corporation. Mr. Walker holds &Bin Electrical Engineering from
Princeton University and a M.S. and Ph.D. in EleatrEngineering from the Massachusetts Institit€ezhnology.
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William P. Wood has served as a directoBiti€on Laboratories since March 1997 and as LRiaelctor since December 2005. Since
1996, Mr. Wood has also served as general parfnerimus funds associated with Silverton Partnangenture capital firm. From 1984 to
2003, Mr. Wood was a general partner, and for oeftands created since 1996, a special limitedngartof various funds associated with
Austin Ventures, a venture capital firm. Mr. Woaanlds a B.A. in History from Brown University andvaB.A. from Harvard University.

The remaining information required by the&m is incorporated by reference to the Proxye®tent under the sections captioned "Prof.
One: Election of Director", "Executive CompensatidiCompliance with Section 16(a) of the Securittechange Act of 1934" and "Code of
Ethics."

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption "Execet@ompensation” and "Proposal One: Election of i appearing in the Proxy Statement,
is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

The information under the caption "Ownepshii Securities" and "Equity Compensation Plan imfation" appearing in the Proxy
Statement, is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information under the caption "Certiglationships and Related Transactions, and Dirécttependence” appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information under the caption "Propdsab: Ratification of Appointment of Independentdieered Public Accounting Firm"
appearing in the Proxy Statement is incorporatedihdy reference.

Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(a) 1. Financial Statements

Index
Page

Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-1
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-2
Consolidated balance sheets at December 29, 2@DDa@rember 30, 20C F-3
Consolidated statements of income for the fiscatyended December 29, 2007, December 30, 200becember 31, 20C F-4
Consolidated statements of changes in stockholdgusty for the fiscal years ended December 2972D@cember 30, 2006 and
December 31, 200 F-5
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the figears ended December 29, 2007, December 30, 20d®ecember 31, 20( F-6
Notes to consolidated financial stateme F-7
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2.

Schedule!

All schedules have been omitted since tf@ration required by the schedule is not appliEatx is not present in amounts sufficient to
require submission of the schedule, or becausimtbemation required is included in the consolidbfmancial statements and notes thereto.

3.

Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the accompanyingintb exhibits immediately following the consoliddtfinancial statements are filed as part of,
or hereby incorporated by reference into, this Fa0¥K.

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number
2.1*  Share Purchase Agreement, dated May 11, 200éndypetween Silicon Laboratories France and

3.1*

3.2*

4.1*

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

the shareholders of Silembia (filed as Exhibit 11®.the Form -K filed May 15, 2006)

Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Certificateodrporation of Silicon Laboratories Inc.
(filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's RegistratStatement on Form S-1 (Securities and
Exchange Commission File No. -94853) (the "IPO Registration Statement

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Silicon latbdes Inc (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Forr-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 20l

Specimen certificate for shares of common stod&dfas Exhibit 4.1 to the IPO Registration
Statement)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Silicabbratories Inc. and each of its directors
executive officers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thedRegistration Statemen

Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Rifiled as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Securitieseatathange Commission File No. 333-60794)
filed on May 11, 2001)

Form of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of GranStock Option under Registrant's 2000
Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to fegistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended January 1, 200

Form of Addendum to Stock Option Agreement undagifeant's 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (fi
as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended January 1,
2005).

Form of Stock Issuance Agreement under Registra@0 Stock Incentive Plan (filed as
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Annual Report @nrfr 1(-K for the year ended January 1, 20(

Form of Addendum to Stock Issuance Agreement uRagistrant's 2000 Stock Incentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant's AnnuabRrt on Form 10k for the year ended January
2005).

Silicon Laboratories Inc. Employee Stock Purchdae Hiled as Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20t

Lease Agreement dated June 26, 1998 by and bet@ikeon Laboratories Inc. and S.W. Austin
Office Building Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to tHPO Registration Statemen
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10.9*

10.10*

Lease Agreement dated October 27, 1999 by and bat&#icon Laboratories Inc. and Stratus
7000 West Joint Venture (filed as Exhibit 10.6He tPO Registration Statemer

Lease Agreement dated June 29, 2000 by and bet8ikkeon Laboratories Inc. and Stratus 7000
West Joint Venture. (filed as Exhibit 10.19 to Begistrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for



10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

the quarter ended July 1, 200

Employment Agreement dated August 30, 2005 betv#iaon Laboratories Inc. and Dr. Necip
Sayiner (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Fori-K filed September 12, 200¢

Employment Agreement dated November 3, 2006 bet@daron Laboratories Inc. and William
Bock (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Forn-K filed November 8, 2006

Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement datartivi30, 2006 among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., BAL Investment & Advisory, Inend Gary S. Farmer (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 5, 2006).

Participation Agreement dated March 30, 2006 anfitigon Laboratories Inc., BAL
Investment & Advisory, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank Naxist, National Association and various ot
financial institutions named therein filed as ExhilD.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on
Form &K filed on April 5, 2006)

10.15* Sale and Purchase Agreement dated February 8,1808id between NXP B.V., NXP
Semiconductors France SAS, Silicon Laboratoriesdnd Silicon Laboratories International
Pte. Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrau@urrent Report on Form 8-K filed on February 9,
2007).

10.16* Intellectual Property License Agreement dated ddarfch 23, 2007, by and among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., Silicon Laboratories InternatibRte. Ltd., NXP B.V. and NXP Semiconduct
France SAS (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registsa@urrent Report on Form 8-K filed on
March 29, 2007)

10.17*  Amendment to Stock Options Agreement between Sillcaboratories Inc. and William G. Bock
dated July 19, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to tregRtrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
July 20, 2007)

21 Subsidiaries of the Registral

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

24 Power of Attorney (included on signature page te Borm 1(-K).

311 Certification of the Principal Executive Officels eequired by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of the Principal Accounting Officeas required by Section 302 of the SarbaDgkey
Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification as required by Section 906 of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated herein by reference to the indicailetf
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, réegistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized, in Austin, Texas, on February @&

SILICON LABORATORIES INC.

By: /s/ NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatleperson whose signature appears below constangappoints Necip Sayiner
and William G. Bock, and each of them, acting indiixally, as his or her attorney-fact, each with full power of substitution and restitution
for him or her and in his or her name, place arddtin any and all capacities, to sign any andrakndments to this annual report on Form 10
K and other documents in connection herewith aedethith, and to file the same, with all exhibiteréto, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact agents, and each of them, full power and authtoitio and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done inezdion herewith and therewith and about the presnias fully to all intents and purposes as
he or she might or could do in person, herebyyiatif and confirming all that said attorneys-in-faad agents, or any of them, or their or his
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or catesbe done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated:

Name Title Date

/s/ NAVDEEP S. SOOCH
Chairman of the Board February 5, 2008

Navdeep S. Sooc

/sl NECIP SAYINER President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

February 5, 2008
Necip Sayine

/s/ WILLIAM G. BOCK Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

February 5, 2008
William G. Bock

/sl PAUL V. WALSH, JR.

Vice President (Principal Accounting Officer) February 5, 2008
Paul V. Walsh, Ji
/s/ DAVID R. WELLAND
Vice President and Director February 5, 2008
David R. Wellanc
58
/s/ HARVEY B. CASH
Director February 5, 2008
Harvey B. Casl
/s/ NELSON C. CHAN
Director February 5, 2008

Nelson C. Cha



/s/ ROBERT TED ENLOE, i

Robert Ted Enloe, Il

/sl KRISTEN M. ONKEN

Kristen M. Onker

/s/ LAURENCE G. WALKER

Laurence G. Walke

/sl WILLIAM P. WOOD

William P. Wood

Director

Director

Director

Director
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February 5, 2008

February 5, 2008

February 5, 2008

February 5, 2008




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicor.aboratories Inc.

We have audited Silicon Laboratories Inaternal control over financial reporting as ofd@enber 29, 2007, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issuedtrsy Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ivay Commission (the COSO
criteria). Silicon Laboratories Inc.'s managemsmesponsible for maintaining effective internahirol over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagement's Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiig to express an opinion on the company's interoiatrol over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®tst audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could bawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Silicon Laboratories Incaimtained, in all material respects, effective iné control over financial reporting as of
December 29, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Laboratdniesas of December 29, 2007 and December 30,,20Qbthe related consolidated
statements of income, changes in stockholderstyequid cash flows of Silicon Laboratories Inc. éach of the three fiscal years in the period
ended December 29, 2007 and our report dated FgtBua008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Austin, Texas
February 5, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicor.aboratories Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@iibtlance sheets of Silicon Laboratories Incf&®ecember 29, 2007 and December 30,
2006, and the related consolidated statementscofiie, changes in stockholders' equity, and cas¥sffor each of the three fiscal years in the
period ended December 29, 2007. These financitdments are the responsibility of the Company'sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statemersiscban our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementieneed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Silicon Laboratories Inc. at December 29, 2007 Badember 30, 2006, and the consolidated results operations and its cash flows for e
of the three fiscal years in the period ended Déxa29, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally epted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtdoard (United States), Silicon
Laboratories Inc.'s internal control over financighorting as of December 29, 2007, based on ieriéstablished in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated February 5,
2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidéiteathcial statements, effective January 1, 2006 Gbmpany changed its method of accounting
for stock-based compensation to conform to StatéwfeRinancial Accounting Standards No. 123(R),d&hBased Payment".

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Austin, Texas
February 5, 2008
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share data)

Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $517 at
December 29, 2007 and $421 at December 30,
Inventories
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Current assets of discontinued operati

Total current asse

Property, equipment and software,
Goodwill

Other intangible assets, r

Other assets, n

Non-current assets of discontinued operati

Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Deferred income on shipments to distribut
Income taxe:
Current liabilities of discontinued operatic

Total current liabilities
Long-term obligations and other liabilitit
Non-current liabilities of discontinued operatic

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci

Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock—$0.0001 par value; 10,000 sharémared; no shares issu
and outstandin
Common stock—$0.0001 par value; 250,000 share®apthl; 52,810 and
54,802 shares issued and outstanding at Decemb20@% and December 3(
2006, respectivel
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earninc

Total stockholders' equit

Total liabilities and stockholders' equ

December 29,

December 30,

2007 2006
$ 264,40t $ 68,18¢
308,56¢ 318,10«
51,211 36,65
28,581 22,01¢
6,02t 12,11¢
33,89¢ 12,94
33,68(
692,69: 503,70°
28,15} 34,07(
73,19¢ 65,68(
18,07 20,27:
28,12 24,52¢
— 38,73¢
$ 840,24t $ 686,99

$ 33,32 % 26,43¢
26,391 23,05

28,44¢ 20,56¢

5,22¢ 15,06:

— 16,50:

93,39: 101,62:

43,30¢ 15,64

— 1,05(

136,70: 118,31¢

5 5

303,68: 373,65!

399,85t 195,02:

703,54! 568,68:

$ 840,24t $ 686,99!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Revenue!
Cost of revenue

Gross profi

Operating expense
Research and developm:
Selling, general and administrati
In-process research and developn

Operating expenst

Operating incom

Other income (expense
Interest incom
Interest expens
Other income (expense), r

Income from continuing operations before incomest
Provision for income taxe

Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operations, net of incaaxes

Net income
Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operatiol
Net income
Diluted earnings per shat
Income from continuing operatiol
Net income
Weighte-average common shares outstand
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended

December 29,

December 30,

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
$ 337,46 $ 288,15( $ 238,58'
130,22 100,67 79,95(
207,23 187,47 158,63’
89,32( 89,80« 76,37
94,81¢ 89,02: 63,31
— 2,60(
184,13 181,42¢ 139,69:
23,09 6,052 18,94t
24,52t 13,74 8,28t
(629) (872) (322)
(46¢) 744 (332)
46,52 19,66¢ 26,57¢
6,83¢ 4,32¢ 8,871
39,68 15,34: 17,69¢
165,14 15,81 29,80;
$ 204,83 $ 31,15¢ $ 47 50¢
$ 0.7: $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3¢
$ 3.74 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.8¢
$ 0.7¢C $ 027 $ 0.3:
$ 364 $ 054 $ 0.8€
54,82t 55,34 53,30¢
56,32 57,201 55,48F
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Balance as of January 1, 2C
Exercises of stock optiot
Income tax benefit from employ
stock-based award
Repurchase and cancellation of
unvested share
Employee Stock Purchase P
Deferred stock compensati
Stock compensatic
Purchase acquisitic
Net income

Balance as of December 31, 2(
Stock issuances under employe
plans, net of shares withheld foi
taxes
Income tax benefit from employ
stock-based award
Repurchases of common stc
Employee Stock Purchase P
Reclass due to the adoption
SFAS 123F
Stock compensatic
Net income

Balance as of December 30, 2(
Stock issuances under emplo
plans, net of shares withheld foi
taxes
Income tax benefit from employ
stock-based award
Repurchases of common stc
Employee Stock Purchase P
Stock compensatic
Net income

Balance as of December 29, 2(

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderSquity

(in thousands)

Common Stock

Number Additional Deferred Total
of Par Paid-In Stock Retained Stockholders'
Shares Value Capital Compensation Earnings Equity
52,50¢ $ 5 % 287,90¢ $ 4,787 $ 116,35¢ $ 399,48
1,20¢ — 17,33¢ — — 17,33¢
_ — 4,61¢ — — 4,61¢
(31) — (12) — — (12)
13z — 2,862 — — 2,862
— — (697) 697 — —
— — 4,28¢ 2,98t = 7,27¢
71z — 18,98( — — 18,98(
— — — — 47,50¢ 47,50¢
54,53( 5 335,28 (1,10%) 163,86 498,04¢
1,677 — 33,50+ — — 33,50+
— — 13,04« — — 13,04«
(1,559 - (50,04¢) - - (50,04¢)
14¢ — 3,351 — — 3,351
- — (1,10%) 1,10¢ — _
— — 39,615 — — 39,615
— — — — 31,15¢ 31,15¢
54,80: 5 373,65! — 195,02: 568,68:
2,32¢ — 38,58¢ — — 38,58¢
— — 4,69¢ — — 4,69¢
(4,43)) — (163,18)) — — (163,18:)
11¢€ — 2,947 — — 2,941
_ — 46,97 — — 46,97
_ _ — — 204,83¢ 204,83t
52,81( $ 5 $ 303,68. $ — $  39985¢ $ 703,54!
| | | | | |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended

December 29,

December 30,

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Operating Activities
Net income $ 204,83t $ 31,15¢ $ 47,50¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praviol operating activities
Income from discontinued operatic (165,149 (15,815 (29,807
Depreciation and amortization of property, equiptreerd softwar¢ 11,10¢ 13,27( 15,86
Loss on disposal of property, equipment and soft 64 71z 21
Amortization of other intangible assets and otlesets 4,98( 4,72( 2,81¢
Stock compensation exper 39,97¢ 31,02¢ 6,95¢
Acquired and i-process research and developn — 2,60( 13,681
Additional income tax benefit from employee st-based award 2,997 11,87( 3,142
Excess income tax benefit from employee s-based award (2,959 (6,639 —
Deferred income taxe (159 (7,929) (5,739
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (14,559 (2,62]) (8,37))
Inventories (6,399 (20,357 4,147
Prepaid expenses and other as 9,271 (6,87¢€) (11,48¢)
Accounts payabl (3,129 (1,34¢) 12,87¢
Accrued expense 3,06( 9,96: (2,899
Deferred income on shipments to distribui 7,88( 5,91¢ 3,351
Income taxe: (48,84)) (3,339 10,14:
Net cash provided by operating activities of comitigy operation: 43,987 56,33 62,21¢
Investing Activities
Purchases of shi-term investment (555,799 (404,66 (385,55:)
Sales and maturities of sh-term investment 565,33t 349,76t 350,81¢
Purchases of property, equipment and softv (5,387) (22,315 (17,957
Proceeds from the sale of ass 270,75( 2,03z 26€
Purchases of other ass (9,502) (3,659 (14,68¢)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acqt (8,540 (15,71%) (6)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activibgésontinuing operation 256,85¢ (94,557 (67,119
Financing Activities
Proceeds from Employee Stock Purchase 2,947 2,641 2,29
Proceeds from exercises of stock opti 18,92( 30,29¢ 15,68:
Excess income tax benefit from employee s-based award 1,95¢ 6,63¢ —
Repurchases of common stc (157,33)) (50,04¢) —
Repurchases of stock to satisfy employee tax withihg (6,505) (1,295 —
Payments on del — (774 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitégontinuing operation (140,01:) (12,549 17,971
Discontinued Operations
Operating activitie: 10,79 28,06: 41,67
Investing activities (1,659 (15,60¢) (5,09t
Financing activitie: 26,24¢ 5,98t 2,212
Net cash provided by discontinued operati 35,38¢ 18,44( 38,78¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi 196,22( (32,31¢) 51,86¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 68,18¢ 100,50« 48,63¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 264,40¢ $ 68,18¢ $ 100,50

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Interest paic $ 702 % 631 $ 344
| | |
Income taxes pai $ 49,19:  $ 8,51¢ $ 6,62:

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Activity:

Proceeds from the sale of assets held in es $ 14,25 $ —  $ —
| | |
Accrued other asse $ — % — % 8,12¢
. By
Stock issued for acquisition of busine $ — % — % 18,98(

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 29, 2007

1. Description of Business

Silicon Laboratories Inc. (the CompanyRelaware corporation, develops and markets mixgdasianalog intensive integrated circuits
(ICs) for a broad range of applications for glotmearkets. Within the semiconductor industry, the @any is known as a "fabless" company
meaning that the ICs are manufactured by thirdydadndry semiconductor companies.

On March 23, 2007, the Company sold itsoAeainsceiver, AeroFONE single-chip phone and pameplifier product lines (the "Aero
product lines") to NXP B.V. and NXP SemiconductBrance SAS (collectively "NXP"). The financial rétswof the sold product lines have
been presented as discontinued operations in tieotidated financial statements. Prior period foiahstatements have been reclassified to
reflect these changes for all periods presented Aesult, the footnote disclosures have also bedsed to exclude amounts related to the
discontinued operations. See Note 3, "DiscontifDpdrations,” to the Consolidated Financial Stataésfar additional information.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolioia

The Company prepares financial statememts 52-53 week year that ends on the Saturdaystlts®ecember 31. Fiscal years 2007,
2006 and 2005 were 52-week years and ended Dec&@p2007, December 30, 2006 and December 31, 208pectively. The
accompanying consolidated financial statementsidethe accounts of the Company and its wholly asubsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have begeimaied.

Foreign Currency Transactior

The functional currency of the Companyieign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar; accordinglygains and losses resulting from
remeasuring transactions denominated in curremties than U.S. dollars are included in net income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally eapted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféattae amounts reported in the financial statet:iand accompanying notes. Among
the significant estimates affecting the financtatements are those related to inventories, stookpensation, goodwill, long-lived assets and
income taxes. Actual results could differ from the@stimates, and such differences could be materibk financial statements.

Reclassification:
Certain reclassifications have been mageito year financial statements to conform withreat year presentation.
Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The Company's financial instruments cormistcipally of cash and cash equivalents, shamtmvestments, accounts receivable and
accounts payable. The Company believes all of tfieaacial instruments are recorded at amountsahptoximate their current market values.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
December 29, 2007

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of capbgits and investments with maturities of ninetydor less when purchased.
Short-Term Investments

The Company's short-term investments haiggnal maturities greater than ninety days asefdate of purchase and have been classifiec
as available-for-sale securities in accordance fiitlancial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statenof Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investmeint®ebt and Equity Securities”. The Company hasatbility and intent, if necessary, to
liquidate any of its short-term investments in aresupport its current operations . Accordinglych investments (including those with
contractual maturities greater than one year fioendate of purchase) are classified as short-tevestments on the consolidated balance
sheets. The carrying value of all available-$ate securities approximates their fair value dueow they trade in the marketplace with frequ
resets of their interest rates. The Company revibese investments as of the end of each repgutirigd for other-than-temporary declines in
fair value based on the specific identification hoet. When the Company concludes that an othert#naporary impairment has resulted, the
difference between the fair value and the carryialge is written off and recorded as an impairnedr@trge in the consolidated statement of
income.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of adstermined using the first-in, first-out method market.
Property, Equipment and Softwe

Property, equipment, and software are dtateost, net of accumulated depreciation and taation. Depreciation and amortization are
computed using the straight-line method over thefuldives of the assets ranging from three to frears. Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the contractual lease periodair tiseful life, whichever is shorter.

LongLived Assets

Purchased intangible assets are statembgtret of accumulated amortization, and are dmsattusing the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, ranging from two to ninarge
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 29, 2007

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Company evaluates its long-lived assedscordance with FASB SFAS No. 144, "Accounfiogthe Impairment of Long-lived
Assets". Long-lived assets "held and used" by tbm@any are reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate
that their net book value may not be recoverableel\such factors and circumstances exist, the Coyngampares the projected undiscour
future cash flows associated with the related amsgtoup of assets over their estimated usefakliwgainst their respective carrying amounts.
Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of #rgying amount over the fair value of those asartkis recorded in the period in which the
determination was made. Long-lived assets helddta by the Company are adjusted to fair valuedessto sell in the period the "held for
sale" criteria are met and reclassified to a curaseet. The fair value less cost to sell amouev@uated each period to determine if it has
changed. Changes are recognized as gains or ostsesperiod in which they occur.

Carrying values of goodwill and other irgésle assets with indefinite lives are revieweteatt annually by the Company for possible
impairment in accordance with FASB SFAS No. 14208@will and Other Intangible Assets". The goodwilpairment test is a two-step
process. The first step of the impairment analgsiapares the fair value of the company or repotinig to the net book value of the company
or reporting unit. In determining fair value, SFA%2 allows for the use of several valuation methagies, although it states quoted market
prices are the best evidence of fair value. Ifrémilts of the first step demonstrate that thebnek value is less than the fair value, the
Company must proceed to step two of the analysep Svo of the analysis compares the implied falue of goodwill to its carrying amount.

If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its imeglfair value, an impairment loss is recognizedagdo that excess. The Company tests
goodwill for impairment annually as of the firstydaf its fourth fiscal quarter and in interim pai®if events occur that would indicate that the
carrying value of goodwill may be impaired.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenues are generated almost exclusiyepales of the Company's ICs. The Company recogmeaeenue when all of the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehatdn arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsokaarred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonaldguared. Revenue from product sales to direct cuestoand contract manufacturers is generally
recognized upon shipment. Certain of the Compagatess are made to distributors under agreementsialj certain rights of return and price
protection on products unsold by distributors. Adaogly, the Company defers revenue and cost afimae on such sales until the distributors
sell the product to the end customer.

Shipping and Handling
Shipping and handling costs are classéi®@ component of cost of revenues in the consetidstatements of income.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 29, 2007

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has two stock-based compemsplams, the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and the Bysa Stock Purchase Plan. Prior to
fiscal 2006, the Company accounted for those plawer the recognition and measurement provisiodsP® Opinion No. 25, "Accounting fc
Stock Issued to Employees”, and related Interpogtat as permitted by FASB SFAS No. 123, "Accounfior Stock-Based Compensation".
Compensation costs related to stock options graattéair value under those plans were not recoghizehe consolidated statements of
income. Compensation costs related to restriceekstestricted stock units (RSUs) and stock oggtigranted below fair value were recognized
in the consolidated statements of income. In De@r@B04, FASB issued SFAS 123 (revised 2004), 'SBased Payment", (SFAS 123R).
Under the new standard, companies are no longerntalzlccount for share-based compensation transaaising the intrinsic value method in
accordance with APB Opinion No. 25. Instead, congmare required to account for such transactisitgua fair-value method and recognize
the expense in their statement of income.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company &tbSFAS 123R using the modified-prospective-ttarsimethod. Under this transition
method, stock compensation cost recognized beginfanuary 1, 2006 includes: (a) compensation costlfshare-based payments granted
prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 20@6ed on the grant date fair value estimateddordence with the original provisions of
SFAS 123, and (b) compensation cost for all shaset payments granted on or subsequent to Janu2098, based on the grant-date fair
value estimated in accordance with the provisidrSFAS 123R. Results for prior periods have nonbestated. See Note 10, "Stockholders'
Equity and Stock-Based Compensation," to the Cafesteld Financial Statements for additional inforiorat

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incuskdgertising expenses were $1.1 million, $1.6 roilliand $1.4 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes @o@ance with FASB SFAS No. 109, "Accounting fordme Taxes". This statement requ
the use of the asset and liability method wheredferded tax asset and liability account balanceslatermined based on differences between
financial reporting and the tax bases of assetdiabilities and are measured using the enactethtag and related rates that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. Tdiffeeences result in deferred tax assets andlitias, which are included in the Company's
consolidated balance sheet. The Company then asstheslikelihood that the deferred tax assetsheiltecovered from future taxable income.
A valuation allowance is established against detetax assets to the extent the Company belieatsabovery is not likely based on the level
of historical taxable income and projections faufe taxable income over the periods in which gmegorary differences are deductible.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 29, 2007

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net incamenet unrealized gains (losses) on availabledite investments. There were no signifi
differences between net income and comprehensdgaria during any of the periods presented.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS(ieMised 2007), "Business Combinations”, (SFAS J48RAS 141R establishes principles
and requirements for how an acquirer recognizesagakures in its financial statements the idebtéiassets acquired, including goodwiill,
liabilities assumed and any non-controlling intéiaghe acquiree. The Statement also establisise®dure requirements to enable users of the
financial statements to evaluate the nature arahéial effects of the business combination. SFABRL® effective for business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after tleginning of the first annual reporting period bedirg on or after December 15, 2008. The
impact of adopting SFAS 141R will be dependenthanftiture business combinations that the Comparnypuesue after its effective date.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS "Fgir Value Measurements"”. SFAS 157 definesvalue, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosat®ut fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is eféefdr fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 and interim periods within thfiseal years. In December 2007, the FASB releaggwposed FASB Staff Position (F:
FAS 157-b—Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 1%f)ch, if adopted as proposed, would delay theatife date of SFAS 157 for all
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities;ept those that are recognized or disclosed av&die in the financial statements on a
recurring basis (at least annually). Based on th@any's current operations, it does not expettiiaadoption of SFAS 157 will have a
material impact on its financial position or reswf operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 15Be Fair Value Option for Financial Assets anddficial Liabilities—Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115". SFAS 159mdpthe use of fair value accounting to many fimgnostruments and certain other
items. The fair value option is irrevocable andegaily made on an instrument-by-instrument basisnéf a company has similar instruments
that it elects not to measure based on fair v&8&AS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginninggaNovember 15, 2007. Based on the
Company's current operations, it does not expettttie adoption of SFAS 159 will have a materigbdt on its financial position or results of
operations.

3. Discontinued Operation

On March 23, 2007, the Company sold itsoAmoduct lines to NXP for $285 million in casmdiuding $14.3 million held in escrow
recorded in the "prepaid expenses and other cuasseits” line of the consolidated balance shele,gulditional earn-out potential of up to an
aggregate of $65 million over the next three years.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

December 29, 2007

3. Discontinued Operation (Continued)

The financial results of the sold prodires have been presented as discontinued operatitims consolidated financial statements. The

following summarizes results from the discontinopeérations (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended

December 29,

December 30,

December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Revenue! $ 46,31( 176,44: $ 187,10:

Costs of revenues and operating expe 43,81( 153,37¢ 148,03°
2,50( 23,06: 39,06¢

Gain on sale of discontinued operati 224,88

Income from discontinued operations before inct

taxes 227,38 23,06: 39,06

Provision for income taxe 62,23¢ 7,24¢ 9,25¢

Income from discontinued operations, net of incc

taxes $ 165,14¢ 15,81 $ 29,80"

Income from discontinued operations per commones|

Basic $ 3.0z 0.2¢ $ 0.5¢

Diluted $ 2.9¢ 027 $ 0.5¢

Weighte-average common shares outstand

Basic 54,82¢ 55,34¢ 53,39¢

Diluted 56,32: 57,20! 55,48t

During fiscal 2007, the Company made $4billon of estimated tax payments due primariljthe gain on the sale of its Aero product
lines and received $26.2 million for the exerci§stock options from employees who were hired byf\associated with the sale of the Aero

products.

Continuing Involvement

In connection with the closing of the sales Company entered into certain ancillary agredgswith NXP, including a Transition Servic
Agreement ("TSA") and an Intellectual Property lrise Agreement ("IPLA"). Through the TSA, the Companbleased certain premises to
NXP and provided various temporary support seryisesh as IT support services. Such services werdded for approximately six mont|
from the closing date and are no longer being plewi The fees for these services were generalliyaguat to the Company's cost. The TSA
fees were approximately $3.9 million in fiscal 200hrough the IPLA, the Company granted NXP a lggewith respect to retained intellectual
property and NXP granted a license to the Compattyngspect to transferred intellectual propertpwéver, these crodiense agreements

not involve the receipt or payment of any royaltesl therefore are not considered to be a compaf@antinuing involvement.
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3. Discontinued Operation (Continued)

Although the services provided under thé& B®nerated continuing cash flows between the Compad NXP, the amounts were not
considered to be significant to the ongoing operetiof either entity. In addition, the Company hasontractual ability through the TSA or
any other agreement to significantly influence dperating or financial policies of NXP. Under theyisions of Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) Issue No. 03:3, "Applying the Conditions of Paragraph 42 of BAStatement No. 144 in Determining Whether to Repiscontinuec
Operations," the Company therefore has no sigmificantinuing involvement in the operations of tbemer product lines sold to NXP and t
classified such operating results as discontinysetations.

4. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the compiatatof basic and diluted earnings per share frontinaing operations (in thousands, except per
share data):

Year Ended
December 29 December 30 December 31
2007 2006 2005

Income from continuing operatiol $ 39,687 $ 15,34: $ 17,69¢
Shares used in computing basic net income per: 54,82¢ 55,34¢ 53,39¢
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options and awari 1,49¢ 1,85¢ 1,721

Weighted-average shares of common stock subje:

repurchasi — — 98

Contingent shares, acquisiti — — 267
Shares used in computing diluted earnings per ¢ 56,32 57,20: 55,48¢

Income from continuing operatiol
Basic earnings per she $ 07z $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.7¢ $ 027 $ 0.32

Approximately 4.0 million, 3.9 million argl7 million weighted-average dilutive potential sfgof common stock have been excluded
from the earnings per share calculation for figesrs ended December 29, 2007, December 30, 2@0Berember 31, 2005, respectively, as
they are anti-dilutive.
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5. Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments consist of the felfgy (in thousands):

December 29 December 30

Debt Security 2007 2006
Auction-rate securitie $ 172,000 $ 175,23!
Variable-rate demand note 100,47( 133,65¢
Municipal 8,03 9,21¢
U.S. government agent 16,11¢ —
Commercial pape 11,94 —

$ 308,56t $ 318,10

The Company's short-term investments irelmdmarily auction-rate securities and variableidemand notes. These securities trade in
the money market, but have long-term underlyingumiti¢s. The Company's intent is not to hold theseurities to their underlying maturities,
but to sell these securities to provide liquidisyreeeded. The following summarizes the contractodérlying maturities of short-term
investments (in thousands):

December 29

2007
Due in less than one ye $ 43,54¢
Due between one year through ten y¢ 12,62t
Due after ten years through twenty ye 63,67¢
Due after twenty yeal 188,72(

$ 308,56¢

6. Balance Sheet Details

Balance sheet details (excluding discomtthaperations) consist of the following (in thoudsin

Inventories
December 29, December 30,
2007 2006
Work in progres: $ 25,60F $ 16,33
Finished good 2,982 5,68¢
$ 28,587 $ 22,01¢
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6. Balance Sheet Details (Continued)

Property, Equipment and Softwe

Equipment

Computers and purchased softw
Furniture and fixture

Leasehold improvemen

Accumulated depreciatic

Accrued Expense

Accrued compensation and bene
Accrued price protection credi
Other

Long-term obligations and other liabilities

Unrecognized tax benefits (including intere
Other
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December 29

December 30

2007 2006
$ 30,50¢ $ 32,23¢
37,73 37,04(
2,65( 2,931
11,05¢ 10,03"
81,04 82,25:
(53,78)) (48,187
$ 28,157 $ 34,07(
| |

December 29,

December 30,

2007 2006
$ 10,23C $ 9,26¢
9,48 8,54¢
6,68¢ 5,23¢
$ 26,397 $ 23,05
—eeee——— E——

December 29,

December 30,

2007 2006
$ 29,447 % —
13,86: 15,64:
$ 43,30¢ $ 15,64
—eeee——— E——




Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
December 29, 2007

7. Risks and Uncertainties
Financial Instrument:

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjthe Company to significant concentrations eflirrisk consist primarily of cash, cash
equivalents, short-term investments and accountivable. The Company places its cash, cash eguitsahnd short-term investments
primarily in market rate accounts. Concentratioheredit risk with respect to accounts receivalske @imarily due to customers with large
outstanding balances. The Company's customersdtbatinted for greater than 10% of accounts reckivainsist of the following:

December 29 December 30
2007 2006
Edom 43% 48%
Avnet *x 10%
Motorola *x 13%

*k Less than 10% of accounts receivable

The Company performs periodic credit evédues of its customers' financial condition and gratly requires no collateral from its
customers. The Company provides an allowance faanpial credit losses based upon the expectedatibliéty of such receivables. Losses
have not been significant for any of the periodsspnted.

Suppliers

A significant portion of the Company's puotk are fabricated by Taiwan Semiconductor Manufary Co. (TSMC). The inability of
TSMC to deliver wafers to the Company on a timedgib could impact the production of the Companggsiycts for a substantial period of
time, which could have a material adverse effedhenCompany's business, financial condition asdlte of operations.

Customers

The Company sells directly to end customisdributors and contract manufacturers. AlthotlghCompany actually sells the products
and is paid by, distributors and contract manufaes) the Company refers to the end customer asistomer. The Company's end customers
and distributors that accounted for greater th& d®revenue consists of the following:

Year Ended
December 29 December 30 December 31
2007 2006 2005
End Customer
LSI ** ** 11%
Distributors
Edom 36% 33% 33%
Avnet 10% 13% *x

x Less than 10% of reveni

F-16




Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 29, 2007

8. Acquisitions
SourceCore

On October 9, 2007, the Company compleateddquisition of substantially all of the assdtSoaurceCore, a privately held mixed-signal
design company for approximately $10.7 million, @fincludes direct acquisition costs. Of such odersition, $2.0 million was withheld as
security for breaches of representations and waesaand certain other expressly enumerated mafthesacquisition was accounted for as a
purchase business combination in accordance wiBB-8FAS No. 141, "Business Combinations” and, atiogly, the results of SourceCor
operations are included in the Company's consadegsults of operations from the date of the aitijom. Through the acquisition, the
Company acquired RF designers as well as an afiplisaand software team in close proximity to oustomer base in China. These factors
contributed to a purchase price that was in exocette fair value of the net assets acquired as@, @sult, the Company recorded goodwiill.
None of the goodwill is deductible for tax purpastse purchase price was allocated as follows: gilt—$7.7 million; intangible assets—
$2.6 million; and net tangible assets—$0.4 million.

Silembia

In May 2006, the Company completed its &itjan of Silembia, a privately held company bage&ennes, France. Silembia developed
semiconductor intellectual property for digital desalation and channel decoding. The Company addjailleof the outstanding capital stock
Silembia in exchange for approximately $20.5 milligvhich includes direct acquisition costs. Of saohsideration, $2.8 million was withheld
as security for breaches of representations anchwtées and certain other expressly enumeratecersatthe acquisition was accounted for
purchase business combination in accordance wigBSF1 and accordingly, the results of Silembigsrations are included in the Compa
consolidated results of operations from the datia@facquisition. Through the acquisition, the Campacquired engineering expertise and
reduced the time required to develop new technetoghd products. These factors contributed to ehpse price that was in excess of the fair
value of the net assets acquired and, as a résellGompany recorded goodwill. None of the goodisitieductible for tax purposes. The
purchase price was allocated as follows: goodwil8-9%nillion; intangible assets—$9.5 million; IPR&D$2.6 million; and net tangible
assets—$(1.5) million.

Silicon MAGIKE, Inc.

In August 2005, the Company completeddtgussition of Silicon MAGIKE, Inc. (Silicon MAGIKE)a mixed-signal development-stage
enterprise that develops high-voltage, high-pertoroe, mixed-signal ICs. The Company acquired athefoutstanding capital stock of Silicon
MAGIKE for initial consideration of $15.9 millionThrough the acquisition, the Company acquired esgging expertise and significant
development progress on high-voltage productsctomance with EITF Issue No. 98-3, "Determiningafffer a Nonmonetary Transaction
Involves Receipt of Productive Assets or of a Basf" this transaction was accounted for as a paechf assets. The purchase price was
allocated as follows: acquired research and devedop—3$13.7 million; intangible assets—$2.1 milliamd net tangible assets4&thousanc
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amount and accumulateartization of goodwill and other intangible assats as follows (in thousands):

December 29, 200° December 30, 200!
Weighted-
Average
Amortization Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Period (Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Unamortized intangible asse
Goodwill Not amortizec  $ 73,19¢ $ — % 65,68 $ —
| .| | |

Amortized intangible asset

Core & developed technolog 8.4 $ 18,95( $ (6,167 $ 18,65( $ (3,929
Customer relationshif 5.0 4,40( (1,559 2,10( (1,069
Patents 7.0 4,66% (2,617) 4,768 (2,027)
Internal use softwar 6.8 68C (413) 1,00(¢ (525)
Employmen-related 4.6 71¢ (593) 2,49: (1,19¢)
Total $ 29,41 % (11,339 $ 29,00¢ $ (8,73%)

The increases in goodwill and amortizedrigible assets are primarily due to the acquistafifSourceCore and Silembia in fiscal 2007
and 2006, respectively. Amortization expense rdlédantangible assets for fiscal 2007, 2006 an@b2@as $4.3 million, $4.1 million and
$2.7 million, respectively. Fully amortized assats written off against accumulated amortizatiome €stimated aggregate amortization
expense for intangible assets for each of thedueeeeding fiscal years is as follows (in thousgnds

Fiscal Year Amount

2008 $ 4,131
2009 $ 3,931
2010 $ 3,29¢
2011 $ 2,97¢
2012 $ 2,17

10. Stockholders' Equity and Stock-Based Compensati

Common Stock

The Company had 52.8 million shares of cemstock issued and outstanding as of Decembe2@®¥,. The Company issued 2.4 million
shares of common stock during fiscal 2007. Appratety 0.2 million shares were withheld by the Compduring fiscal 2007 to satisfy
employee tax obligations for the vesting of certtiock grants made under the Company's 2000 Staektive Plan.

As of December 29, 2007, the Company hadrued shares of common stock for future issuasdellaws (in thousands):

2000 Stock Incentive Ple 15,11¢
Employee Stock Purchase P 1,361
Total shares reservt 16,47¢
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10. Stockholders' Equity and Stock-Based Compensati (Continued)
Share Repurchase Program

In July 2007, the Company's Board of Dioestauthorized a program to repurchase up to $40i@mof the Company's common stock
from time to time over a 24-month period. The peograllows for repurchases to be made in the opekeanar in private transactions,
including structured or accelerated transactionijest to applicable legal requirements and magkatlitions. The Company's previous
$100 million share repurchase program expired iy 2007. The Company repurchased 4.4 million shargs1.6 million shares of its common
stock for $163.2 million and $50.0 million duringdal 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has two stock-based compemsplams, the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and the Byag Stock Purchase Plan, which are
described below. Prior to fiscal 2006, the Compacgounted for those plans under the recognitionnaeasurement provisions of APB
Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Hoyges," and related interpretations, as permhie8FAS 123. Effective January 1, 2006,
the Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modifiedgective-transition method. Results for prior pési have not been restated.

Prior to adopting SFAS 123R, the Compargsented all tax benefits of deductions resultiogifthe exercise of stock grants as operating
cash flows in the consolidated statements of dasvsf SFAS 123R requires the cash flows resultingifthe tax benefits from tax deductions
in excess of the compensation cost recognized $sxes benefits) to be classified as financing ¢kmsins.

The shares issuable under the 2000 Stagtive Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan atitatly increase on the first stock mai
trading day of each calendar year. On January @7 #te amount of shares reserved for the 2000 $tmentive Plan and the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan increased by 2.7 million and 250sD@@es, respectively.

2000 Stock Incentive Plan

In fiscal 2000, the Company's Board of Bioes and stockholders approved the 2000 StockntiveePlan (the 2000 Plan). The 2000 Plan
contains programs for (i) the discretionary gragif stock options to employees, non-employee bosthbers and consultants for the
purchase of shares of the Company's common stijcthg discretionary issuance of common stockaiye(as granted under direct issuance
shares in stock awards and RSUSs), (iii) the grantinspecial below-market stock options to exeautfficers and other highly compensated
employees of the Company for which the exerciseepean be paid using payroll deductions and (ig)ahitomatic issuance of stock options to
non-employee board members. The discretionary mgguaf common stock, RSUs and stock options gdyerahtain vesting provisions
ranging from three to eight years. If permittedtby Company, stock options can be exercised imrtedgiand, similar to the direct issuance
shares, are subject to repurchase rights whichrglyné&apse in accordance with the vesting schedtie repurchase rights provide that upon
certain defined events, the Company can repuralmagested shares at the price paid per share. Tineofeeach stock option is no more than
ten years from the date of grant.
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10. Stockholders' Equity and Stock-Based Compensati (Continued)

The Company granted to its employees (ttioly employees who were hired by NXP associatel thi¢ sale of the Aero products)
0.5 million, 0.3 million and 1.6 million stock optis, and 1.0 million, 1.0 million and 1.2 milliofistock awards and RSUs from the 2000 Plan
during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivelye Tompany recorded $5.5 million of stock compensatixpense in "Income from
discontinued operations, net of income taxes" dufiscal 2007 in connection with modifications afuity grants to employees who were hired
by NXP in connection with the sale of the Aero prodines. As of the closing date of the sale,Gloenpany accelerated the vesting of
0.5 million shares of options and awards, and elddrthe exercise period of 0.9 million shares dioos through December 31, 2007. Further,
the Company cancelled 0.3 million shares of uneksftions and awards related to the terminated @yepk. An additional $2.5 million was
recorded in selling, general and administrativeegige during fiscal 2005 in connection with certaimdifications of non-employee stock
compensation. The Company accelerated the vestiogr@in options and stock awards and extendeexhecise period of the options
pursuant to a separation agreement between the @gnamd its former CEO in fiscal 2005. There wayether significant modifications ma
to any stock grants during these periods.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ReecRlan) was adopted by the Company's Board etfis in fiscal 2000. Eligible
employees may purchase a limited number of shdr® Company's common stock at 85% of the mar&ktevduring a series of offering
periods. Each offering period is divided into seaniual purchase intervals and has a maximum te2d afonths. During fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2005, the Company issued a total of 116,008,000 and 133,000 shares under the Purchase Rlaretoployees (including employees
who were hired by NXP associated with the saldefAero products). The weighted-average fair védu@urchase rights granted under the
Purchase Plan for fiscal 2007 was $10.72 per share.

Accounting for Stock Compensation

Stock-based compensation costs are genéadied on the fair value calculated from the Bi&ckoles optiorpricing model on the date
grant for stock options and on the date of enrafinfer the Purchase Plan. The fair values of stoglirds and RSUs generally equal their
intrinsic value on the date of grant.

The fair values of stock options and RSkésaanortized as compensation expense on a stil@ghbasis over the vesting period of the
grants. The fair values of stock awards are fullgemsed in the period of grant, when shares aresithately issued. Compensation expense
from continuing operations recognized is showrhimdperating activities section of the consolidatadements of cash flows.
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10. Stockholders' Equity and Stock-Based Compensati (Continued)

In anticipation of adopting SFAS 123R, @empany evaluated the assumptions used in the Hlabkles model. As a result, the
Company changed its methodology for computing etqueeolatility and expected term. Calculation opested volatility was changed from
being based solely on historical volatility to ard@nation of both historical volatility and impliesblatility derived from traded options on the
Company's stock in the marketplace. The Comparig\Jed that the combination of historical volatilapd implied volatility provides a better
estimate of future stock price volatility. The egped term was previously calculated based on alysisaf historical exercises of stock
options. The Company believes that an analysissbbttical exercises and remaining contractualdffeptions provides a better estimate of
future exercise pattern.

The Company continues to base the estiofaisk-free rate on the U.S. Treasury yield curveffect at the time of grant. The Company
has never paid cash dividends and does not cyriatéind to pay cash dividends, thus has assun®éd dividend yield.

As part of the requirements of SFAS 123R,Company must estimate potential forfeitures@tlsgrants and adjust compensation cost
recorded accordingly. The estimate of forfeituréslve adjusted over the requisite service permthe extent that actual forfeitures differ, or
are expected to differ, from such estimates. Chaurgestimated forfeitures will be recognized tlglow cumulative catch-up adjustment in the
period of change and will also impact the amourgtotk compensation expense to be recognized unefyeriods.

The weighted-average fair value of shargetdgpayments was estimated using the Black-Scbpté&mn-pricing model with the following
assumptions:

Year Ended

December 29  December 30 December 31

2007 2006 2005

2000 Stock Incentive Pla

Expected volatility 48% 5% 53%

Risk-free interest rate ¢ 4.6% 4.6% 3.8%

Expected term (in year 4.9 5.3 4.8

Dividend yield — — —
Employee Stock Purchase Pl:

Expected volatility 37% 5% 55%

Risk-free interest rate ¢ 4.8% 5.C% 3.5%

Expected term (in month 14 8 15

Dividend yield — — —
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10. Stockholders' Equity and Stock-Based Compensati (Continued)

A summary of the Company's stock compeosaittivity with respect to fiscal 2007 follows:

Weighted-Average Aggregate
Shares Weighted-Average Exercise Remaining Contractual Intrinsic Value
Stock Options (000s) Price Term ($000s)
Outstanding at December 30, 2( 7,70¢ $ 30.7¢
Granted 48C $ 35.11
Exercisec (1,859 $ 24.3:
Cancelled or expire (536) $ 36.4¢
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 579¢ $ 32.7C 544 % 42 71(
Vested at December 29, 2007 and expected tc 549¢ $ 32.6: 531 $ 41,40(
Exercisable at December 29, 2( 4,19 $ 32.0C 45C $ 35,98¢
Aggregate

Shares Weighted-Average Exercise Weighted-Average Intrinsic Value
Stock Awards and RSUs (000s) Price Remaining Vesting Ternm ($000s)
Outstanding at December 30, 2( 1,941 $ 0.0C
Granted 98: $ 0.0C
Issuec (66€) $ 0.0C
Cancelled or expire (457 $ 0.0c
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 1,801 $ 0.0c¢ 167 $ 67,85¢
Outstanding at December 29, 2007 and expectedsk 1462 $ 0.0c 15¢ $ 55,14(
Exercisable at December 29, 2( — % — — 3 —

The following summarizes the Company's Wiid average fair value at the date of grant (olioly activity related to discontinued
operations):

Year Ended
December 31,
December 29, 200 December 30, 200 2005
Per grant of stock optior $ 16.1¢ $ 19.7: % 15.1¢
Per grant of stock award or RS $ 3428 $ 37.5¢ $ 32.17
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10. Stockholders' Equity and Stock-Based Compensati (Continued)

The following summarizes the Company'sistogsed payment and stock option values (in thaigan

Year Ended
December 31
December 29, 200 December 30, 200 2005
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis $ 23,68 $ 41,440 $ 22,49
Intrinsic value of stock awards issued and RSUs
vestec $ 22,667 $ 465 $ —
Grant date fair value of RSUs that ves $ 22,41¢ $ 439 $ —

The Company had approximately $88.6 milldérotal unrecognized compensation costs relateddck options and RSUs at
December 29, 2007 that are expected to be recapizr a weighted-average period of 2.0 years.&tere no significant stock
compensation costs capitalized into assets as céleer 29, 2007.

The Company received cash of $45.1 milfmrthe exercise of stock options during fiscal 20@cluding $26.2 million from employees
included in discontinued operations. Cash was setlto settle any equity instruments previousiygé The Company issues shares from the
shares reserved under the 2000 Stock Incentiveuplan the exercise of stock options, issuanceoaksawards, and vesting of RSUs. The
Company does not currently expect to repurchasestiseom any source to satisfy such obligation utide Plan.

The following are the stock-based compédosatosts recognized in the Company's consolidstizements of income (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 29, December 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Cost of revenue $ 153¢ $ 1,028 $ 98
Research and developm 16,38t 12,79( 2,64t
Selling, general and administrati 22,05¢ 17,21« 4,21%
39,97¢ 31,02¢ 6,95¢

Provision for income taxe (6,755 (5,699 (2,517
$ 3322: % 2533¢ $ 4,44
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10. Stockholders' Equity and Stock-Based Compensati (Continued)

As discussed above, results for prior giribave not been restated to reflect the effedmpliementing SFAS 123R. The following table
illustrates the effect on net income and net incpereshare if the Company had applied the fairezaicognition provisions of SFAS 123 to
stock options granted under the Company's stodkmoptans for fiscal 2005. For purposes of this famona disclosure, the value of the stock
options was estimated using a Black-Scholes oggitting formula and amortized to expense over tht#as' vesting periods (in thousands,
except per-share amounts):

Year Ended
December 31, 2005

Net incom—as reportes $ 47,50¢
Total stock-based compensation cost, net of relaedffects included in the
determination of net income as repor 4,64¢

The stock-based employee compensation cost, metatéd tax effects, that
would have been included in the determination ofimeome if the fair value
based method had been applied to all aw (30,699

Pro forma net incom $ 21,46

Net income per shar

Basic—as reportet $ 0.8¢
Basic—pro forma $ 0.4C
Dilutedc—as reportet $ 0.8¢
Diluted—pro forma $ 0.3¢

11. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a defined contributo401(k) Plan for its qualified U.S. employeRarticipants may contribute a percentage of
their compensation on a pre-tax basis, subjectni@dmum annual contribution imposed by the InteRevenue Code. The Company may
make discretionary matching contributions as weldliscretionary profit-sharing contributions to #@L(k) Plan. The Company's contributions
to the 401(k) Plan vest over two years at a ra&08b per year. The Company contributed $1.8 millieh1 million and $0.6 million to the 401
(k) Plan during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, redpelst The increase in fiscal 2006 and 2007 is jrilg due to the Company increasing the
amount of matching contributions per employee bagimin 2006.

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

The Company leases its facilities underaiieg lease agreements that expire at variousdateugh 2013. Some of these arrangements
contain renewal options and require the Comparpatotaxes, insurance and maintenance costs.

Rent expense under operating leases wasdilion, $5.7 million and $3.4 million for fisc&007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The minimum annual future rentals undertémens of these leases at December 29, 2007 dodasgs (in thousands):

Fiscal Yeal

2008 $ 7,20:
2009 6,41¢
2010 3,84(
2011 3,11z
2012 3,11z
Thereaftel 1,01¢
Total minimum lease paymer 24,70¢
Minimum sublease rental incon (5,309
Total net minimum lease paymel $ 19,40z

The Company has an accrual of $2.6 milibBecember 29, 2007 for the present value of estichfuture obligations for non-cancelable
lease payments (net of estimated sublease incatad to vacating certain leased facilities. See=N5, "Headquarter Relocation Costs," to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for additiorfarmation.

In March 2006, the Company entered intopgrating lease agreement and a related participatireement (collectively, the "lease") for
a facility in Austin, Texas for its corporate headders. The lease has a term of seven years. adgerbnt for the term of the lease is an am
equal to the interest accruing on $44.3 milliodHd basis points over the three-month LIBOR (whichuld be approximately $13.8 million
over the remaining term assuming LIBOR average3%.8uring such term).

The Company has granted certain rightsrangedies to the lessor in the event of certainudsfaincluding the right to terminate the lee
to bring suit to collect damages, and to compel@bepany to purchase the facility. The lease costather customary representations,
warranties, obligations, conditions, indemnificatjgrovisions and termination provisions, includoayenants that the Company shall maintain
unencumbered cash and highly-rated skemra investments of at least $75 million and aorafifunded debt to earnings before interest exp
income taxes, depreciation, amortization, leaseers@ and other non-cash charges (EBITDAR) ovefotleprior fiscal quarters of no greater
than 1.5 to 1. As of December 29, 2007, the Comjetigves it was in compliance with all covenarftthe lease.

During the term of the lease, the Compaary dn on-going option to purchase the buildingaftotal purchase price of approximately
$44.3 million. Alternatively, the Company can catise property to be sold to third parties proviitad not in default under the lease. The
Company is contingently liable for the guarantesgidual value associated with this property inghent that the net sale proceeds are less
the original financed cost of the facility up topapximately $35.3 million. To the extent that thet proceeds generated from the sale of the
facility to a third party exceed $9.0 million, t@®mpany would have the right to receive (a) suligtyall of such excess proceeds if the sale
occurs prior to the end of the term or (b) up tpragimately $35.3 million of such excess proceéddisd sale occurs after the end of the term.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

In accordance with FASB Interpretation M5, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requénets for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others," the Comgetgymined that the fair value associated withgilneranteed residual value was
$1.0 million. The amount was recorded in "Otheetsset" and "Long-term obligations and otheriliags" in the consolidated balance sheets
and is being amortized over the term of the lease.

The Company is required to periodicallyleate the expected fair value of the facility a #nd of the lease term. If the Company
determines that it is estimable and probable tiaekpected fair value will be less than $44.3iamillit will ratably accrue the loss up to a
maximum of approximately $35.3 million over the @@ning lease term. As of December 29, 2007, the g2my has determined that a loss
contingency accrual is not required.

Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action comipiar violations of U.S. federal securities lawasafiled in the United States District Court
the Southern District of New York against the Compdour officers individually and the three invesnt banking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connectigh the Company's initial public offering of commetock. The Consolidated Amended
Complaint alleges that the registration statemadtgospectus for the Company's initial public offg did not disclose that (1) the
underwriters solicited and received additional,essive and undisclosed commissions from certaiesitovs, and (2) the underwriters had
agreed to allocate shares of the offering in exghdor a commitment from the customers to purclaasitional shares in the aftermarket at
pre-determined higher prices. The action seeks damim an unspecified amount and is being cooreéhaith approximately 300 other nearly
identical actions filed against other companieso@irt order dated October 9, 2002 dismissed witpeoejudice the four officers of the
Company who had been named individually. On Felyriiy 2003, the District Court denied the motiomigmiss the complaint against the
Company. On December 5, 2006, the Second Circudted a decision by the District Court grantingsleertification in six "focus” cases,
which are intended to serve as test cases. Thtiffieselected these six cases, which do not deblne Company. The Court has indicated that
its decisions in the six focus cases are intendguidvide strong guidance for the parties in theaming cases. On April 6, 2007, the Second
Circuit denied a petition for rehearing filed bjpitiffs, but noted that plaintiffs could ask théstict Court to certify more narrow classes than
those that were rejected.

F-26




Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 29, 2007

12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Prior to the Second Circuit's Decemberd&decision, the Company had approved a settleaggaement and related agreements which
set forth the terms of a settlement between the@owy, the purported plaintiff class and the vagonits of the other approximately 300 isst
defendants. These agreements were submitted istrect Court for approval. In light of the Seco@itcuit's opinion, the parties agreed that
the settlement could not be approved. On June@%/,2he District Court approved a stipulationdiley the issuers and plaintiffs which
terminated the settlement. On August 14, 2007ptaiatiffs filed amended complaints in the six feaases. The amended complaints inclu
number of changes, such as changes to the defirufithe purported class of investors, and theiektion of the individual defendants as
defendants. The six focus case issuers and thewrittgs named as defendants in the focus cassbdiimotion to dismiss the amended
complaints against them on November 14, 2007. QueBeber 27, 2007, the plaintiffs filed a motion étess certification in the six focus
cases. On December 21, 2007, the issuers and tleewniters filed a motion opposing plaintiffs’ cdasertification motion, and the plaintiffs
filed an opposition to defendants' motions to d&sni

The Company is unable to estimate or pteti potential damages that might be awardedrasudt of this litigation, whether such
damages would be greater than the Company's inseiverage, or whether the outcome would havetariabimpact on the Company's
results of operations or financial position.

Patent and Copyright Infringement Litigati

On December 14, 2006, Analog Devices, (Aoalog Devices), a Massachusetts corporationd fildawsuit against the Company, in the
United States District Court in the District of Mashusetts, alleging infringement of United St&atents Nos. 7,075,329, 6,262,600,
6,525,566, 6,903,578 and 6,873,065, and copyrighihgement of certain Analog Devices datasheetsJ&huary 31, 2007, the Company filed
its answer to Analog Devices' complaint, in whibk Company denied infringement and asserted thalogrDevices' patents are invalid. The
Company also filed counterclaims in which it allddgbat Analog Devices has engaged in unfair coripetunder both state and federal law.
The District Court has scheduled a trial date iryM&08. The Court held a Markman patent claim goieibn hearing in November 2007.
Following that hearing, Analog Devices withdrew téai States Patent No. 6,903,578 from the lawsuiD@cember 6, 2007. The lawsuit rel:
to the Company's Si843x and Si844x family of diggalator products and alleges that the infringetweas and continues to be willful. At this
time, the Company cannot estimate the outcomeisfthatter or resulting financial impact to it, ifya

On September 17, 2007, the Company filldvauit against Analog Devices in the United St&esrict Court for the Eastern District of
Texas, Marshall Division, alleging infringementhited States Patent No. 7,171,542, This pateateglto the Company's proprietary
technology for a reconfigurable processor systemQOotober 9, 2007, the Company amended the contdaforther allege infringement of
U.S. Patents Nos. 6,137,372, 7,209,061, and 7,509 he patents relate to the Company's proprigéatynology for radio frequency
transceivers. In the lawsuit, the Company requastsjunction against further infringement and pantof actual damages, interest and costs.
At this time, the Company cannot estimate the autcof this matter or resulting financial impacittaf any.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Other

The Company is involved in various otheyaleproceedings that have arisen in the normalseoaf business. While the ultimate results of
these matters cannot be predicted with certaihtyQompany does not expect them to have a maselvarse effect on its consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

Discontinued Operations Indemnificati

In connection with the sale of the Aeroduret lines, the Company agreed to indemnify NXFhwétspect to (a) liabilities for breach of the
Company's representations and warranties in thehBse Agreement, (b) liabilities for breach of @@mpany's covenants or agreements
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, (c) liabilitiethe Company that were not assumed by NXP anliatilities for certain tax matters. Wi
respect to breaches of representations and wagsatitie Company's maximum potential exposure igditio $14.3 million (the amount of
cash proceeds held in escrow). There is no contmblinit on exposure with respect to the othebiliies. As of December 29, 2007, the
Company had no material liabilities recorded urtdese indemnification obligations.

13. Income Taxes—

Significant components of the provision iftcome taxes attributable to continuing operatiaresas follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 29 December 30 December 31
2007 2006 2005
Current:
Domestic $ 5182 $ 10,17¢ $ 13,30:
Internationa 1,80¢ 2,071 1,30¢
Total Current 6,991 12,24¢ 14,61!
Deferred:
Domestic a77) (7,744 (6,03))
International 24 a7e) 297
Total Deferrec (153 (7,929 (5,739
$ 6,83¢ $ 432¢ $ 8,871
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13. Income Taxes— (Continued)

The Company's provision for income taxdfed from the expected tax expense amount computexpplying the statutory federal
income tax rate to income before income taxesrasut of the following:

Year Ended
December 29, December 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Federal statutory ra 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Stock compensatic 15.€ 26.¢ —
Foreign tax rate benel (23.7) (12.5) (2.0
Tax-exempt interest incormr (11.¢) (22.9) (8.9
Research and development tax cre (3.9 (14.¢) (9.7
Acquired & ir-process research and developn — 4.4 18.C
State tax expens 04 2.8 1.€
Release of prior year unrecognized tax ben (8.7 — —
Other 0.5 2.t (1.2

14.7% 22.(% 33.4%

Income before income taxes included appnaxély $28.7 million, $10.7 million and $7.6 miligelated to foreign operations in fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

At the end of fiscal 2007, undistributedréiags of the Company's foreign subsidiaries ofrapimately $177.8 million are considered
permanently reinvested. Accordingly, no provision¥.S. federal and state income taxes has beep.radermination of the amount of the
unrecognized deferred tax liability on these unt&diearnings is not practicable.
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13. Income Taxes— (Continued)

Significant components of the Company'&defl taxes as of December 29, 2007 and Decemb@086 are as follows (in thousands):

December 29 December 30
2007 2006
Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 2,71¢ % 6,31F
Stock compensatic 6,52¢ 5,92(
Depreciable asse 20,48¢ 19,93t
Research and development tax credit carryforw 2,51: 2,48(
Reserves and allowanc 22¢€ 422
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 1,77 4,00¢
Accrued liabilities and othe 3,86t 2,491

38,111 41,56¢
Less: Valuation allowanc — (337

38,111 41,23

Deferred tax liabilities

Acquired intangible: 4,63¢ 7,10¢
Depreciable asse — —
Long term obligations for tax purpos 15,48 15,48
Prepaid expenses and otl 54 69C

20,17¢ 23,28:
Net deferred tax asse $ 17,93t % 17,95(

As of December 29, 2007, the Company hddrd net operating loss and research and develupredit carryforwards of approximatt
$5.9 million and $0.6 million, respectively, asesult of the Cygnal Integrated Products and SilielxGIKE acquisitions. These carryforwai
expire in fiscal years 2019 through 2025. Recognitif these loss and credit carryforwards is suligean annual limit, which may cause them
to expire before they are used.

The Company also had state loss and rdsaat development credit carryforwards of approxatya$19.3 million and $3.0 million,
respectively. These carryforwards expire in figesdrs 2025 through 2027 and are projected to beadtiagainst state income taxes.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the cagyialues of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the values used for incameurposes. Upon the acquisition of Silembia iry’M806, the Company recorded net
deferred tax liabilities of approximately $3.2 riwh due to differences between book and tax basasquired assets and assumed liabilities.

The Company's operations in Singapore @ngest to reduced tax rates through 2019, as lsrgegain conditions are met. The income
benefit reflected in earnings was approximately $fillion (representing $0.05 per diluted share2@®7, and $2.2 million (representing $0.04
per diluted share) in 2006.
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13. Income Taxes— (Continued)

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation (RtiN) 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Xes" at the beginning of fiscal 2007.
As a result of the adoption of FIN 48, the Compesognized no change in the liability for unrecagui tax benefits. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized taefits is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 30, 2C $ 18,88:
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 14,76¢
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye: (442
Reductions for tax positions as a result of a lajgbe applicable statute of limitatio (5,909)
Balance at December 29, 2C $ 27,30!

As of the date of adoption, the Company 8.9 million of unrecognized tax benefits, whigbuld affect the effective tax rate if
recognized. As of December 29, 2007 the Company$Ba®B million of unrecognized tax benefits, whigbuld affect the effective tax rate if
recognized. During the year, the Company had grassases of $14.8 million to its current year wognized tax benefits, primarily related to
tax consequences associated with discontinued tigesaln addition, the Company had gross decreafs$6.4 million to its unrecognized tax
benefits related to both the closure of an incoaxeatudit and the closure of open tax years (of wii2.2 million related to our discontinued
operations).

The Company recognizes interest and pesalélated to unrecognized tax benefits in theipiav for income taxes. During fiscal years
2007, 2006 and 2005, the company recognized appedgly ($0.1) million, $0.5 million and $0.3 milkiprespectively, net of tax, in the
provision for income taxes. The Company had accapmtoximately $2.1 million and $2.3 million foretfpayment of interest at the end of
fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The tax years 2004 through 2007 remain apexxamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich the Company is subject.
14. Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment,dygignal analog intensive ICs, consisting of numerproduct areas. The Company's chief
operating decision maker is considered to be thef@&xecutive Officer. The chief operating decisimaker allocates resources and assesses
performance of the business and other activiti¢seabperating segment level.
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14. Segment Information (Continued)

Revenue is attributed to a geographic besad on the end customer's shipped-to locatiomfdllowing summarizes the Company's

revenue by geographic area (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 29 December 30 December 31
2007 2006 2005
United State: $ 43,74:  $ 46,44¢ $ 36,97¢
Taiwan 83,17¢ 56,78¢ 48,67(
China 79,261 61,38¢ 54,05¢
South Kores 36,57 26,01: 4,90z
Rest of worlo 94,71( 97,52¢ 93,98!
Total $ 337,46. $ 288,15¢ $ 238,58
The following summarizes the Company's kimgd assets by geographic area (in thousands):
December 29 December 30
2007 2006

United State! $ 101,40C $ 110,82(

France 21,18¢ 20,48:

Rest of worlc 9,75(C 4,10z

Total $ 132,33t $ 135,40!

15. Headquarter Relocation Costs

In fiscal 2006, the Company relocated nodsts Austin, Texas employees to a new corporatdiquarters. In fiscal 2007, the Company
relocated the remainder of its Austin employedsstbeadquarters. The Company recorded $3.8 miliothe expected costs related to
vacating certain leased facilities (including $thiflion for impairment of leasehold improvementsidarniture and fixtures). The charges w
recorded in the "selling, general and administedtiine of the consolidated statements of inconte llowing table summarizes the accrued

relocation costs activity (in thousands):

Balance at Additions Charged Balance at End
Fiscal Year Beginning of Year to Expenses Deductions(1) of Year
2007 $ 2,261 $ 704 $ (347) $ 2,61¢
2006 $ — $ 2,39¢ $ (137) $ 2,261

) Deductions represent lease and brokerage commigaioments
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Supplementary Financial Information (Unaudited)

Quarterly financial information for fiscaD07 and 2006 is as follows. The financial datafiral 2006 has been reclassified to reflect the
sale of the Company's former Aero product linediasontinued operations. The sale of these prdihes closed on March 23, 2007. See
Note 3, "Discontinued Operation,” to the ConsokdbFinancial Statements for additional informatiati.quarterly periods reported here h
thirteen weeks (in thousands, except per share @atspu

Fiscal 2007
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue! $ 100,11: $ 87,93t $ 75,597 $ 73,81«
Gross profil 63,54¢ 52,95: 45,36+ 45,37¢
Operating income (los: 14,47 10,41t 1,93 (3,729
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 15,91¢ 17,62« 6,89 (74€)
Income from discontinued operations, net of 5,39¢ 2,81( 581 156,35¢1)
Net income $ 21317 % 20,43 % 747 % 155,61(1)
Basic earnings per shal
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 02¢ $ 03z $ 0.1z $ (0.01
Net income $ 03¢ $ 037 $ 014 % 2.8¢
Diluted earnings per shat
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 026 $ 031 $ 01z $ (0.01
Net income $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 01z % 2.8¢
Fiscal 2006
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue: $ 74,612 $ 72,95¢ $ 73,93t $ 66,652
Gross profil 45,383 47,07¢ 49,49: 45,525
Operating income (los: 1,015 (141 1,458 3,725
Income from continuing operatiol 4,350 2,78¢ 3,00¢ 5,198
Income from discontinued operations, net of 873 1,94¢ 7,132 5,866
Net income $ 5223 % 4,73¢  $ 10,137 $ 11,064
Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operatiol $ 008 % 0.0t % 0.0t % 0.09
Net income $ 010 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.20
Diluted earnings per shat
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.08 $ 0.0t $ 0.0t $ 0.09
Net income $ 009 % 0.0¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.19

Q) Includes a gain on the sale of our Aero produ@djmet of related income taxes.
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Shenzhen Silicon Laboratories Technology, L
Silicon Laboratories France S/

Silicon Laboratories Gmbl

Silicon Laboratories Asia Pacific, Limite
Silicon Labs Technology India Private Limit
Silicon Laboratories Italy S.r.I

Silicon Laboratories Y.K.

Silicon Laboratories International Pte. Lt
Silicon Laboratories Sweden A

Silicon Laboratories UK Limite:

Silicon Labs Isolation, Inc

Silicon Laboratories Technology, LL

Silicon Labs CP, Inc

Silicon Labs HV, Inc.

Organized
Under Law Of

China

France

Germany

Hong Kong
India

Italy

Japar

Singapore
Sweder

United Kingdom
State of Californice
State of Delawar
State of Delawar
State of Texa
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 No. 33328, 333-45682, 333-60794, 333-83844,
333-104771, 333-112324, 333-122845, 333-13170B&8140862) of our reports dated February 5, 200, respect to the consolidated
financial statements of Silicon Laboratories Inud ghe effectiveness of internal control over ficiahreporting of Silicon Laboratories Inc.,
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for thear ended December 29, 2007.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 5, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commgon
by Registrant's Chief Executive Officer, as requiré by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Necip Sayiner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidasboratories Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fa

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in al
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedul
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ¢tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestipularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpg; or caused such internal control over finahaporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readersdsurance regarding the reliability of finanecégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport oul
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures as of the end of thegepvered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tleaturred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditongl éhe audit committee of registrant's board oéctiors (or persons fulfilling the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and




b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the
registrant's internal controls over financial rejpy.

Date: February 5, 20(C

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine

President anc

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commgon
by Registrant's Chief Financial Officer, as requiral by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, William G. Bock, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidasboratories Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fa

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in al
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedul
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ¢tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestipularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpg; or caused such internal control over finahaporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readersdsurance regarding the reliability of finanecégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport oul
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures as of the end of thegepvered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tleaturred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditongl éhe audit committee of registrant's board oéctiors (or persons fulfilling the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and




b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the
registrant's internal controls over financial rejpy.

Date: February 5, 20(C

/s/ WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as create8dayion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002herche undersigned officers of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifgtth

(i) the accompanying Annual Report omnrd.0-K of the Company for the fiscal year endedd&meber 29, 2007 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Repautly Eomplies with the requirements of Section )2{@Section 15(d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1384

(i) the information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

A signed original of this written statemesajuired by Section 906 has been provided to tragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities Exchange Commissidts staff upon request.

Dated: February 5, 20(

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine
President anc
Chief Executive Office

/s WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officel
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